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Directors’ Report
To the Members
Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)

The Directors present the Thirtieth Annual Report together with the audited accounts of your Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/ HIGHLIGHTS

The standalone and consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein 
after referred as ‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The highlights of the Financial Results of the Company as prepared under Ind AS for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, 
respectively are as under:

i.	Sta ndalone financial statements
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Standalone

Year ended  
31st March, 2024

Year ended  
31st March, 2023

Gross Income 47,966.30 31,753.12

Profit /(Loss) before tax 14,539.36 5,227.72

Tax (Expense) / Credit 2,954.48 975.67

Profit/(Loss)after tax 11,584.88 4,252.05

Total Comprehensive Income 11,574.52 4,190.22

Balance of Profit from previous years 52,762.50 50,182.28

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (750.00) 1,610.00

Amount available for appropriation 63,587.02 52,762.50

ii.	 Consolidated financial statements
(₹ in Lakh)

Particulars
Consolidated

Year ended  
31st March, 2024

Year ended  
31st March, 2023

Gross Income 47,966.30 31,753.13

Profit /(Loss) before tax 15,214.93 5,831.84

Tax (Expense) / Credit 3,124.47 1,127.79

Profit/(Loss)after tax 12,090.46 4,704.05

Total Comprehensive Income 12,079.95 4,642.49

Balance of Profit from previous years 55,217.12 52,184.90

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve (750.00) 1,610.00

Amount available for appropriation 66,547.22 55,217.12

CREATION OF RESERVES

During the year, the Company has created a general reserves of ` 1,180 lakh due to redemption of debentures.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The brief on operations and financial performance of your Company has been covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report which forms 
part of this report.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

In terms of Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013, except as disclosed elsewhere in this Report, no material changes and commitments which could 
affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this Report.

ANY REVISION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS / DIRECTOR’S REPORT

There was no change in the financial statements / Director’s report for the FY 2022-23.

REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE

Consolidated financial statements in terms of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 are prepared by consolidation of financial statement of its 
associate. The investment in associate is accounted using equity method.

The performance of the subsidiary and the associate are presented in AOC-1 which forms part of the Financial Statements.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2024 is ₹ 8,96,88,640. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares.

During the year under review, Company has issued and allotted in aggregate, 75, Unsecured, Unlisted, Rated, Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures, 
bearing a face value of ₹ 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore Only) each, aggregating to up to ₹ 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Crore Only)

The Company has also issued and allotted Unlisted Rated Commercial Papers, bearing a face value of ₹ 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakh Only) with maturity 
value aggregating to up to ₹ 1,70,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Seventy Crore Only).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Alternate Assets Business:

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited is India’s leading alternate asset manager in the business of managing and advising funds across the following 
asset classes namely (a) Special Situations (b) Real Estate (c) Infrastructure (d) Private Equity (e) Private Credit and (f) Investment Advisory. It curates 
Investment products for Investors & manages these to invest in unique and interesting investment opportunities relevant to the Indian markets and 
financing requirements of businesses.

The Company also provides non-binding investment advisory services to High Networth Individual (HNI) Clients.

The Company changed its name from Kotak Investment Advisors Limited to Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited for better reflection of its business.

Your Company’s Alternate asset management business is generating free cash flow from business. We are investing in building the investment advisory 
business and the digital advisory and distribution business under Cherry. These businesses are longer gestation and are in development stage.

During the year, the Company has received new capital commitments of ~₹ 5,000 crore across various funds and strategies. The aggregate alternate assets 
managed / advised (including undrawn commitments, wherever applicable) as on 31st March, 2024 were ₹ 45,291 crore.

The overview of the alternate assets business of the Company is as follows:

Realty Fund: With a legacy spanning nearly two decades, Kotak Realty Fund manages a multi-billion dollar portfolio at the forefront of India’s real estate 
private equity scene. It has demonstrated resilience and expertise by navigating various market cycles and offering customized capital solutions tailored to 
each investment opportunity. With deep market knowledge and acumen, it has consistently delivered superior, risk-adjusted returns to marquee investors, 
reinforcing its position as a pivotal player in the real estate investment.

Infrastructure Fund: Kotak Infrastructure Investment Fund is India’s premier credit fund dedicated exclusively to the infrastructure sector. The fund aims 
to capture the burgeoning opportunities within India’s infrastructure landscape by providing an investment platform for marquee investors. Leveraging 
Kotak Group’s rich legacy, scale, and deep expertise, the fund introduces a distinct investing approach covering operating assets across the traditional and 
emerging infrastructure spectrum.

Data Center Fund: India has emerged as the global leader in the data revolution. It has the highest data consumption per mobile user, backed by a unique 
digital payment interface, the lowest cost mobile data tariffs and increased smartphone penetration. Kotak Data Center Fund provides investors with the 
unique opportunity to participate in the growth from the buildout of Data Centers, which serve as the nerve centre of digital infrastructure.

Strategic Situation Fund: The Kotak Strategic Situations Fund exemplifies precision investing, identifying strategic scenarios, restructuring & turnaround 
prospects amidst India’s flourishing growth story. Its dynamic approach ensures a bespoke configuration of strategies that tap into unique opportunities. 
Leveraging Kotak’s trust and expertise, it provides appealing risk-adjusted returns via judicious, perceptive investment choices. During the year, the Company 
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raised an additional ₹ 1,447 crore for Kotak Strategic Situations India Fund II, which focuses on providing strategic solution capital across growth and value 
companies. The Fund has raised a total commitment of ₹ 11,695 crore.

Private Equity: As a seasoned player in India’s private equity landscape since 2005, Kotak Private Equity specialises in harnessing the Indian entrepreneurial 
spirit to drive long-term, sustainable growth. Expertly aligning with macroeconomic trends layered with deep insights and adaptive strategies, we drive 
India’s growth story. Kotak Private Equity team continues its focus on proprietary investments in early-stage healthcare and life sciences ventures with 
three deals in this segment.

Private Credit: Kotak Private Credit Fund positions itself at the heart of India’s economic progress, providing bespoke financial solutions designed to 
strengthen robust businesses. Armed with profound industry knowledge, the fund ignites business ambition and fosters innovation, generating superior 
risk-adjusted returns for marquee investors. During the year the Company raised an additional ₹ 662 crore in Kotak Private Credit Fund.

During the year under review, at the standalone level, the Company earned an income of ₹ 270.21 crore from investment management and advisory 
business. Last year, the said income stood at ₹ 215.10 crore. The earnings per share of the Company were ₹ 129.17 per share for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024 as compared to ₹ 47.41 per share during the previous financial year.

Kotak Bespoke Investment Advisory Business:

As a SEBI registered investment advisor, KAAML prides itself on providing advice which is tailored to meet the specific needs and goals of each client and is 
built on the tenets of asset allocation. The advisory proposition is focused on dedicated advice based on client specific investment objectives, preferences 
and tailored solutions based on the risk profile of the client.

The investment advisory team works on a comprehensive investment process where asset allocation is a key cornerstone. Based on a risk profiling 
questionnaire as well as interviews, each client’s risk appetite and tolerance is understood and a customized strategic allocation is designed across various 
asset classes.

Recommendations are based on combining the science and art of investment analysis, with a dedicated product and research team comprising domain 
specialists across asset classes like equity, fixed income and alternates.

Advisors use clear and transparent communication which includes market updates, monthly investment strategy reports, periodic portfolio reviews, regular 
updates from fund managers and industry experts, annual investment outlook etc. to keep the clients up to date on the developments in their respective 
portfolios and in the financial markets. Active communication and ready access to their dedicated investment advisor provides our clients with comfort 
and helps them make better informed decisions on their portfolio. The business is in build out mode and the Company continues to invest in manpower 
and resources to scale this business further.

During the current year, the investment advisory practice achieved the key milestone of crossing ₹ 100,000 crore of assets under advice, across 390+ 
families. During the year, one out of every three clients have increased their assets with us. During the year we launched Kotak Selekt our investment 
advisory offering for clients in the ₹ 5 crore to ₹ 50 crore segment.

Kotak Cherry Platform

Your Company owns and runs a 100% digital investment ecosystem under the brand name of ‘Cherry’, focusing on retail investors with a plan to provide 
diverse gamut of investment products such as Stocks, Mutual Funds, Bonds, MF/Stock Baskets etc. through Cherry’s App & Website.

Cherry is easily accessible to any customer who wants to commence their investment journey, and powered by Cherry’s smart solutions, to embark on 
creating long term-term wealth.

Cherry has achieved meaningful scale over the past year, and is looking to grow manifold over the near to medium term.

Some of the new features introduced on Cherry last year were:

	 Taking an ARN number and becoming a sub-distributor for KMBL for mutual funds. This will ensure a recurring revenue stream for your Company.

	 With Cherry’s “External MF Portfolio” feature, customers can now track any mutual fund they have ever invested in across all platforms. This feature 
is one of the most popular ones on Cherry.

	 Cherry has enabled “One-click Payments”. This innovative feature streamlines the investment process, enabling users to complete their mutual 
fund purchases in under a minute. This eliminates unnecessary steps and friction, potentially encouraging greater participation in wealth creation 
opportunities.

	 Cherry enjoys a prominent position within the investment section of the Kotak Bank app. This strategic placement allows users to seamlessly access 
the new age tech features within Kotak Bank’s mobile application.

	 Cherry has leveraged the Kotak 811 customer base to introduce mutual funds to a whole new customer segment. This strategic move opens doors 
for a wider audience to participate in the financial markets and has the potential to be a significant driver of future growth at Cherry.
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	 Cherry launched the Mutual Fund Selector, a simple tool which empowers investors to make informed investment decisions based on their risk profile 
and investment horizon.

	 Cherry fosters a vibrant investor community by hosting renowned investment experts on its social media platforms. These thought leaders, including 
industry stalwarts like Samir Arora and Nilesh Shah, engage with our audience, sharing valuable insights on current market trends and investment 
practices.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors plays a pivotal role in overseeing the management and strategic direction of the Company. Comprising a diverse group of individuals 
with extensive experience in investment management, finance, compliance and risk management, the Board ensures that the Company operates within the 
regulatory framework and adheres to the highest standards of corporate governance.

During the period under review, the Board met on a quarterly basis with additional meetings convened as required by significant investment decisions and 
other business requirements. As we move forward, the Board remains committed to upholding the highest standards of governance and transparency. The 
Directors are dedicated to ensuring that the Company continues to deliver strong returns while managing risks effectively and upholding our commitment 
to responsible investing.

Composition and changes in the board

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is governed by the Act and is in conformity with the same. As of the date of this report, the 
Board of Directors comprises a combination of eight Directors viz., Mr. Dipak Gupta, Non-Executive Chairperson, Mr. Gaurang Shah, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt, 
Mr. Jaideep Hansraj, Ms. Oisharya Das, Non-Executive Directors, Mr. S. Sriniwasan, Managing Director, Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi and Ms. Lakshmi Iyer, both 
Whole-time Directors. The strength of the Board is accentuated by diversity in terms of the collective skill sets, gender and experience of the Directors. The 
present strength of the Board reflects a judicious mix of professionalism, competence and sound knowledge which enables the Board to provide effective 
leadership and oversight to the Company.

i)	 Appointment

	 Ms. Lakshmi Iyer (DIN: 09494539) was appointed as an Additional and Whole-time Director with effect from 19th May, 2023.

	 Brief profile: Ms. Lakshmi Iyer is the CEO - Investments & Strategy at Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (KAAML). She has been with the Kotak 
Group for over 23 years.

	 As part of KAAML, she is responsible for overseeing wealth advisory, strategy and product solutions spanning across fixed income, equities, real 
estate and alternates for Institutional and NHI clients.

	 In KMAMC, she was CIO Fixed Income & Head – Products. In this role she was responsible for credit research, deal execution, managing fund 
performance across all debt funds and assisting sales in client interaction. In addition to that, she has been a portfolio specialist, and managed 
product related initiatives such as product pricing and coordination with the funds management and sales team in that role.

	 Prior to joining Kotak, Ms. Iyer worked with Credence Analytics Pvt Ltd, as a research analyst where she was tracking corporate bond markets in India 
and generating research reports. She was also instrumental in conceiving various financial software tools in collaboration with software and technical 
teams.

	 Ms. Iyer holds an MBA degree in finance from Narsee Monjee Institute of Management Studies. She has been recognised as one of the Top 25 most 
influential women in asset management in Asia by Asian Investor.

	 Mr. Jaideep Hansraj (DIN: 02234625) was appointed as an Additional, Non-Executive Director with effect from 10th May, 2024.

	 Brief profile: Mr. Jaideep Hansraj is the Group President - One Kotak of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“the Bank”), and brings with him, a strong 
domain in investments and capital markets along with a proven track record of building and scaling large businesses. He was the Managing Director 
of Kotak Securities till March 2024, he had heralded technology to keep digitization and innovation at the core of customer experience. Under his 
astute leadership, Kotak Securities had improved in all critical areas of business - acquisition, volume market share across segments, active clients, 
loan book, profitability, etc.

	 He joined the Kotak Mahindra Group in July 1993, and in a short span of four years, he was elevated to the position of Chief Executive of Kotak 
Mahindra International Ltd. (a subsidiary of Kotak Mahindra Finance Limited). In October 1999, he took over as the Head of Kotak Securities’ private 
client function, and in 2004, moved from Kotak Securities to build the Wealth Management portfolio in the bank.

	 With his leadership, Kotak Wealth Management has emerged as the leading wealth management firm in India and has won several accolades and 
recognition across the industry, including being ranked #1 in the Asian Private Banker’s India 2017 AUM League Table. He has also joined the Bank’s 
Group Management Council, which oversees and drives the bank’s growth charter and monitors all Kotak-related policy decisions and strategies.



8

Annual Report 2023-24

	 He is a member of the Secondary Market Advisory Committee, or SMAC, which deals with secondary market issues such as recommending actions 
to improve market safety, efficiency, and transparency. He serves on the NSE Clearing Limited Advisory Committee and was recently appointed to 
the SEBI-Ad Hoc Intermediary Advisory Committee (AIAC).

ii)	 Resignation

	 Ms. Shanti Ekambaram (DIN: 00004889) resigned as the Director of the Company with effect from close of business hours of 19th May, 2023. Your 
Directors place on record their appreciation and deep gratitude for the immense contribution made by Ms. Shanti Ekambaram as a Director to the 
Company during her tenure.

iii)	 Retirement by rotation

	 Mr. Dipak Gupta (DIN: 00004771) and Mr. Jaimin Bhatt (DIN: 00003657) will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

iv)	 Meetings of the Board

	 During the financial year 2023-24, 12 (Twelve) meetings of Board of Directors were held.

	 The details of the meetings of Board and its Committees are annexed herewith as Annexure A.

v)	 Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

	 In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Managing Director; Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi, Ms. 
Lakshmi Iyer, Whole time Directors and Mr. Devang Salian, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

	 During the year under review, Ms. Lakshmi Iyer was appointed as Whole-time Director with effect from 19th May, 2023

vi)	 Committees of the board

	 	 Audit Committee

		  The Audit Committee consists of Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt and Ms. Oisharya Das. Ms. Shanti Ekambaram 
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 19th May, 2023.

		  During the year under review, four meetings of the Audit Committee were held.

	 	N omination and Remuneration Committee

		  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt and Mr. Gaurang 
Shah. Ms. Shanti Ekambaram and Ms. Oisharya Das ceased to be a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 
19th May, 2023 and 18th October, 2023 respectively.

		  During the year under review, the Nomination Committee was re-constituted as Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from  
18th October, 2023 and three meetings of the Committee were held.

	 	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

		  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee consists of Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt and Ms. Lakshmi 
Iyer. Ms. Shanti Ekambaram ceased to be a member of the CSR Committee with effect from 19th May, 2023.

		  During the year under review, two meetings of the CSR Committee were held.

	 	I nvestment Committee

		  The Investment Committee of the Company (IC) consists of Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Gaurang Shah and Mr. Jaimin 
Bhatt.

		  During the year under review, four meetings of the Investment Committee were held.

	 	 Committee of Directors

		  The Committee of Directors (COD) consists of Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt, Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi and Ms. Oisharya Das.

		  During the year under review, three meetings of the COD were held.

	 	 Product Approval Committee

		  The Product Approval Committee (PAC) consists of Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Gaurang Shah, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt and Ms. Oisharya Das.

		  During the year under review, six meetings of the PAC were held.
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	 	S ecurities and Allotment Committee

		  The Securities Allotment Committee (SAC) consists of Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Mr. Jaimin Bhatt, Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi 
and Ms. Lakshmi Iyer.

		  During the year under review, two meetings of the SAC were held.

	 	E xpense Committee

		  The Expense Committee (EC) consists of Mr. Dipak Gupta, Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian and Mr. Jaimin Bhatt.

		  During the year under review, no meeting of the EC was held.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors, based on representations received from the operational management team, confirm in pursuance of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, that:

(i)	 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material 
departures, if any;

(ii)	 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit of your Company 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024;

(iii)	 they have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv)	 the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v)	 they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating 
effectively.

CREDIT RATINGS

During the financial year 2023-24, CRISIL Rating Limited has assigned long term rating as ‘CRISIL AAA/Stable’ on the Non-Convertible Debentures of the 
Company, and also assigned a short term rating of ‘CRISIL A1+’ on the Commercial Papers of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The Company has not made any loans or given guarantee covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments are given in the note of the financial statement attached to this report [*].

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the FY 2023-24 were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no transactions to be reported under Section 188(1) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

All Related Party Transactions as required under Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) 24 are reported in Notes to Accounts.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) (“Company”), 
has constituted a Board Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee).

Your Company’s CSR policy sets out your Company’s vision, mission, governance and CSR focus areas to fulfill its inclusive agenda across various 
geographies of India. The CSR Policy also highlights your Company’s intent to contribute towards the economic, environmental and social growth of the 
nation and reflects the organisation’s commitment to contribute towards United Nation’s (“UN”) Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”). Your Company 
has collaborated with an implementing organizations to undertake CSR Projects in the CSR focus area viz. Education & Livelihood as defined under the 
CSR Policy.

The Company’s CSR policy is available on the Company’s website viz.: https://alternateassets.kotak.com/policies-and-disclosures.php

Your Company’s CSR, Project and CSR Project Expenditure are compliant with the CSR mandate as specified under Section 134, Section 135 read with 
schedule VII of the Act along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and in line with the 
Government of India’s notifications issued from time-to-time.
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The 2% of Average net profit of the Company for FY 2023-24 as per Section 135 of the Act and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 
2014, as amended from time to time is ` 85.99 Lakh. After setting-off ` 1.35 Lakh from the excess CSR spent of the previous FY 2022-23, the total CSR 
obligation of the Company for FY 2023-24 is ` 84.64 Lakh.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company’s spend on CSR Project is ₹ 5.00 Lakh, amount spent on CSR Administrative Overheads is ₹ 1.53 Lakh. 
Further, an amount of ₹ 81.00 Lakh which is on account of the unutilised CSR Expenditure pertaining to ongoing CSR Projects of FY 2023-24 has been 
transferred to the Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited Unspent CSR Account FY 2023-24 in April, 2024. Your Company is committed to utilise the 
unutilised CSR Expenditure of ₹ 81.00 lakh within the stipulated three years i.e. from 10th April, 2024 to 31st March, 2027.

Together with the CSR Project Spend, administrative expenditure and Unspent CSR amount, the total CSR Expenditure for FY 2023-24 is ₹ 87.53 Lakh, which 
is an excess by ₹ 2.89 Lakh over and above the total CSR obligation of the Company for FY 2023-24. The excess CSR spend of ₹ 2.89 lakh for FY 2023-24 
is being carried forward to succeeding financial years and would be available for set-off in those financial years. The details are more particularly described 
in section on Annual Report on CSR activities for FY 2023-24.

Your Company had transferred ₹ 52.00 lakh to ‘Kotak Investment Advisors Limited Unspent CSR account FY 2022-23’ in April, 2023 pertaining to the 
Ongoing CSR Projects undertaken by the Company in FY 2022-23. During FY 2023-24, an amount of ` 48.87 Lakh was utilised by the implementing 
organisations towards implementation of the CSR Projects. Your Company is committed to utilise the balance amount of ₹ 3.13 lakh in the said unspent 
CSR account within the stipulated period.

The details of CSR Projects and Expenditure under Section 135 of the Act, for FY 2022-23, are annexed to this Report as Annexure B.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has a two tier structure of Risk Management Committees and has adopted comprehensive risk management policy and procedures for its 
business of investment management of domestic funds operating in the alternate assets domain. Under these policies and procedures, the risk analysis is 
done at the time of doing any transactions as well as on periodic intervals.

The Tier I Risk Management Committee - Operations is assisted by Investments, Compliance and Operations Teams in overseeing the risk and guiding the 
various process owners / functions in assessing, mitigating, managing and responding to risks.

The Tier II Risk Management Committee - Board reviews the Risk items escalated by the Tier I RMC-Operations and suggests corrective measures.

The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Prakhar Sharma as the Chief Risk Officer of the Company with effect from 06th March, 2024.

Internal Audit is conducted by reputed audit firms to review all the Fund Management/ Advisory business as well as the Company’s operations and the 
Report is presented to the Board of the Company.

Risks in Fund Management/Advisory are managed by the Risk team along with respective Fund team and Investment Committee (IC) of respective Funds 
which is also responsible for monitoring the credit and liquidity risks. On an annual basis, the Risk Team along with the Investment Team carries out risk 
evaluation exercise relating to all the portfolio companies of domestic alternate assets funds and a report to this extend is presented to Tier I & Tier II 
Risk Management Committee. Corrective measures as recommended by the Members of the Committees are implemented. Further, the Risk Team also 
conducts an enterprise level risk analysis and assigns appropriate risk rating to each type of risk. A report to this effect is thereafter presented to the Board 
of Directors of the Company along with rationale and mitigation measures. Recommendation of the Board is duly incorporated.

The Board of Directors confirms that your Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement Internal 
Financial controls across the organization with reference to Financial Statements and that such controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors confirms that your Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enables to implement Internal 
Financial controls across the organization with reference to Financial Statements and that such controls are adequate and are operating effectively. During 
the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors.

DEPOSITS

The Company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder and, as such, no 
amount of principal or interest was outstanding, as on the date of Balance Sheet.
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COST RECORDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 
2013.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING 
CONCERN STATUS AND OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future 
operations.

AUDITOR’S REPORT:

The Auditor’s Report on Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 issued by M/s Price Waterhouse LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, Mumbai (FRN 301112E/E300264) Statutory Auditors of the Company is self-explanatory and does not contain any qualification, reservation 
or adverse remark or disclaimer.

AUDITORS AND REPORTS

Statutory Auditor:

The Company’s auditors, M/s Price Waterhouse LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN 301112E/E300264), were appointed as Statutory Auditors 
of the Company for a period of 5 years at the 25th Annual general Meeting of the Company held on 18th July, 2019 to hold office till the conclusion of  
30th Annual General Meeting.

The Statutory Auditor has issued Audit Reports with unmodified opinion on the Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

The Notes on the Financials Statement referred to in the Audit Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any further explanation or comments 
from the Board under Section 134(3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Secretarial Auditor:

The Board appointed M/s. RJSY & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. P2016MH057200), to carry out Secretarial Audit under the 
provisions of the Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2023-24.

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s. RJSY & Associates, Company Secretaries, for the financial year 2023-24 confirms that the Company has 
complied with the provisions of the applicable laws and does not contain any observation or qualification requiring explanation or comments from the 
Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The report in Form MR-3 is annexed as Annexure C and forms a part of this Report.

Branch Auditor:

The Company’s auditors, M/s Price Waterhouse LLP, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN 301112E/E300264), were appointed as the Branch Auditor as 
well for the Company’s branch based out of GIFT City.

COMPLIANCES TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standards i.e. Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 applicable to the Company 
during the FY 2023-24.

EMPLOYEES

The Company recognizes that human capital is the key to success and growth in the Company’s business. As on 31st March 2024, the Company had 269 
employees.

A statement giving the particulars of employees as required under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014, is provided.

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & 
REDRESSAL), ACT, 2013

The Company has a policy against sexual harassment and a formal process for dealing with complaints of harassment. The said policy is in line with 
applicable laws. The Company through the policy ensures that all such complaints are resolved within defined timelines.

During the year, there were NIL cases of complaints and none of the previous complaints are pending.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions pertaining to the Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption are not applicable to your Company.
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Following are the foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024:

(i)	 Foreign exchange inflow: ₹ 42,033,475

(ii)	 Foreign exchange outgo: ₹ 74,955,401

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (KAAML) has developed its own ‘ESG Policy Framework’ to mainstream ESG considerations in its funds 
management business. KAAML is a supporter to Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and has actively engaged one of the Big4’s 
to conduct six capacity building sessions at the organizational level. Kotak Infrastructure Investment Fund (KIIF) with KAAML as its Investment Manager, 
has developed an Environmental and Social Management Systems (ESMS) to identify, assess, manage, and monitor the environmental and social (E&S) 
risks and opportunities in its investments.

With aim to increase transparency and investor confidence, screening and scrutiny on ESG aspects is paramount. Currently, every potential investment of 
KIIF undergoes an ESG due diligence (ESGDD) as per the requirement set forth by Indian legal E&S regulations and various investor safeguard requirements 
such as IFC Performance Standards, AIIB E&S Framework, ADB Safeguard Policy Framework etc. (“Applicable International Framework”). The diligence 
identifies ESG related gaps in the potential investee company which are captured under environmental and social action plan (ESAP).

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014, the Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company’s website viz. https://alternateassets.kotak.com/policies-and-disclosures.
php#Annual-Return

ANNEXURES

Following statements/documents/reports are set out as Annexures to the Directors’ Report:

i.	 Details of Board and Committee meetings held during the period under review (Annexure A)

ii.	 Annual Report on CSR Activities for the financial year 2023-24 (Annexure B)

iii.	 Secretarial Audit Report pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Annexure C)
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We thank our members, trustees, investors of funds under management, investee companies and bankers for their continued support during the year. We 
place on record our appreciation for the contributions made by the employees at all levels for their commendable efforts, teamwork and professionalism.

We would like to place on record our gratitude for the valuable guidance and support received from the Securities and Exchange Board of India and other 
Government and Regulatory agencies and look forward to their continued support in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Dipak Gupta		S  . Sriniwasan
Chairman			   Managing Director
(DIN: 00004771)		  (DIN: 00382697)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10th May, 2024
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Details of Board and Committee meetings held during FY 2023-24
Dates of the Board meetings are decided in consultation with the Directors to facilitate their attendance at the meetings. The meetings and agenda items 
taken up during the meetings were in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and various other circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from 
time to time.

The Directors strive to attend all meetings. If they are unable to attend a meeting due to any unavoidable reason, they are required to seek leave of absence. 
Details of the number of Board & Committee meetings held and attended by the Directors during the year ended 31st March, 2024 are as under:

1.	 BOARD MEETINGS

Name

Board Meetings
25th 

April, 
2023

19th 
May, 
2023

19th 
June, 
2023

19th 
July, 
2023

17th 
August, 

2023

04th 
October, 

2023

18th 
October, 

2023

30th 
November, 

2023

15th 
January, 

2024

15th 
February, 

2024

06th 
March, 

2024

27th 
March, 

2024

% of 
attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 100
Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ √ - √ √ √ √ √ √ √ - - 75
Mr. Gaurang Shah - √ - - √ √ - √ √ √ √ √ 66.67
Mr. Jaimin Bhatt - √ - √ - √ √ - √ - - - 41.67
Ms. Oisharya Das √ √ √ - - - √ √ √ - √ √ 66.67
Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi √ √ √ √ √ - √ √ √ √ √ √ 91.67
Ms. Lakshmi Iyer NA √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 100
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram √ √ NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 100

2.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Audit Committee Meetings

25th April, 2023 19th May, 2023 06th March, 2024 27th March, 2024 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ √ √ 100
Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ √ - - 50
Mr. Jaimin Bhatt - √ - - 25
Ms. Oisharya Das NA √ √ √ 100
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram √ √ NA NA 100

3.	NO MINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meetings

25th April, 2023 19th May, 2023 15th January, 2024 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ √ 100

Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ √ √ 100

Mr. Gaurang Shah NA NA √ 100

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt - √ √ 66.67

Ms. Oisharya Das √ √ NA 100

Ms. Shanti Ekambaram √ √ NA 100

4.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
CSR Committee Meetings

15th January, 2024 27th March, 2024 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ 100

Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ - 50

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt √ - 50

Ms. Lakshmi Iyer √ √ 100

Ms. Shanti Ekambaram NA NA NA
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5.	INVES TMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Investment Committee Meetings

17th April, 2023 28th April, 2023 01st June, 2023 05th September, 2023 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ √ - 75

Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ - √ √ 75

Mr. Gaurang Shah - √ √ √ 75

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt √ - √ - 50

6.	 COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS

Name
Committee of Directors Meetings

13th June, 2023 12th August, 2023 04th October, 2023 % of attendance

Mr. S. Sriniwasan √ √ √ 100

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt √ √ √ 100

Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi NA NA NA NA

Ms. Oisharya Das NA NA NA NA

7.	 PRODUCT APPROVAL COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Product Approval Committee Meetings

19th May, 2023 02nd August, 2023 04th October, 2023 17th October, 2023 15th February, 2024 06th March, 2024 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ √ - √ √ 83.34

Mr. Gaurang Shah √ √ √ √ √ √ 100

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt √ √ √ √ - - 66.67

Ms. Oisharya Das NA - - - - √ 20

Ms. Shanti Ekambaram √ NA NA NA NA NA 100

8.	SE CURITIES ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Name
Securities Allotment Committee Meetings

11th September, 2023 12th September, 2023 % of attendance

Mr. Dipak Gupta √ √ 100

Mr. S. Sriniwasan - √ 50

Mr. Jaimin Bhatt √ - 50

Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi √ √ 100

Ms. Lakshmi Iyer - - 0
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Annual Report on Csr activities
of Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) for the Financial Year 2023-24

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

	 Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) (“Company”) recognises its responsibility to bring 
about a positive change in the lives of the communities through its business operations and Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) initiatives.

	 Your Company aspires to be a trusted partner and contributes significantly towards the economic, environmental and social growth of the nation .It 
is also committed to contribute towards United Nation’s (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Your Company’s CSR policy sets out its vision, 
mission, governance, and CSR focus areas to fulfill its inclusive growth agenda in India.

	 While ensuring that its CSR Policy, projects and programmes are compliant with the CSR mandate as specified under section 134, section 135 read 
with schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time 
to time and in line with the Government of India’s notifications issued from time-to-time, your Company also endeavours to align its CSR projects and 
programmes with government.

2.	 Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. 
No. Name of Director Designation Nature of 

Directorship
Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee held during the year
Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee attended during the year

1. Mr. Dipak Gupta Chairman 2 2
2. Mr. S. Sriniwasan Member 2 1
3. Mr. Jaimin Bhatt Member 2 1
4.  Ms. Lakshmi Iyer Member 2 2

3.	 Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company. 
	 Weblink: https://alternateassets.kotak.com/policies-and-disclosures.php

4.	 Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if 
applicable.:

	 The impact assessment is not mandatory for the Company as its CSR obligation is less than ` 10 crore (limit for mandatory Impact assessment 
prescribed under Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time )

	 (a)	 Average net profit of the company as per as per sub-section (5) of section 135 - ` 4341.09 Lakh

	 (b)	 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135 - ` 85.99 Lakh

	 (c)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects, programmes, or activities of the previous financial years – NIL

	 (d)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any - ₹ 1.35 Lakh 

	 (e)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b) + (c) – (d)] - ₹ 84.64 Lakh

6.	 (a)	 Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project) - ₹ 5.00 Lakh

	 (b)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads - ₹ 1.53 Lakh

	 (d)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)] - ₹ 6.53 Lakh 

	 (e)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year 
(` in lakh)

Amount Unspent (` in lakh)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per Section 135(6) of the Act

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per 
second proviso to Section 135(5) of the Act

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

6.53* 81.00 25th April, 2024 N.A N.A N.A

	 	 * includes administrative overhead cost of ₹ 1.53 Lakh
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	 (f)	 Excess amount of set-off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (` in lakh)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act ₹ 85.99*

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ₹ 87.53**

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] ₹ 1.55

(iv) Surplus  arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] ₹ 2.89^
		  * After reducing set off available from previous year, the CSR Obligation for company is ` 84.64 Lakh
		  ** Includes unspent amount transferred to unspent CSR account and administrative overheads
	 	 ^ Including set off amount of previous financial year

7.	 Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial years
(` in lakh)

Sl. 
No. 

Preceding 
Financial 
Year

Amount transferred 
to Unspent CSR 

Account under 
sub-section (6) of 

section 135  
(` in lakh)

Balance Amount 
in Unspent CSR 
Account under 

sub-section (6) 
of section 135 

(` in lakh)

Amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial Year 

(` in lakh)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any

Amount 
remaining to 

be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years 
(` in lakh)

Name of the 
Fund Amount (in `) Date of 

transfer

1. 2022-23 52.00 52.00 48.87 N/A N/A N/A 3.13*

	 *Includes refund of ` 0.25 Lakh received from the implementing organization in April 2024.

8.	 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount  spent in the Financial Year:

Yes No ü Nil

	 If Yes, enter the number of capital assets created / acquired

	 Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

9.	 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) of the Act. – Not Applicable

Dipak Gupta			S   . Sriniwasan
Chairman				    Managing Director
DIN: 0000477			   DIN: 00382697

Place : Mumbai  
Date : 10th May, 2024
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To,
The Members,
Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (Previously known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Kotak 
Alternate Asset Managers Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”).

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 (“Audit period”) 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended 
31st March, 2024 according to the provisions of:

(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(iii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iv)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye - Laws framed thereunder;

(v)	 The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable: -

	 (a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

	 (b)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable during the 
period under review)

	 (c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the 
period under review)

	 (d)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during period under review)

	 (e)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not 
applicable during the period under review)’

	 (f)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable during the period under 
review)

	 (g)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act 
and dealing with client; (Not applicable during the period under review)

	 (h)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable during the period under review)

	 (i)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable during the period under review); and

	 (j)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021. (Not applicable during the 
period under review)

(iv)	 Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the management, that is to say:

	 (a)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Portfolio Managers) Regulations, 2020 and amendments thereto;

Annexure C 

Form No. MR-3 - Secretarial Audit Report
For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 [Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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	 (b)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Investment Advisers) Regulations, 2013 and amendments thereto;

	 (c)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012 and amendments thereto;

	 (d)	 International Financial Services Centres Authority (Fund Management) Regulations, 2022.

(v)	 Other laws to the extent applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Company; We have also examined compliances with the 
applicable clauses of the following:

	 (i)	 Secretarial Standards pursuant to section 118(10) of the Act, issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India as notified from time to 
time;

	 (ii)	 The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with any Stock Exchange(s) (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the above-mentioned Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance, except for some meetings which were called on shorter notice, for which the respective present Directors have ratified the Shorter 
Notice. A system does exist for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor 
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company has:

1.	 Company has changed its name from ‘Kotak Investment Advisors Limited’ to ‘Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited’ and the fresh Certificate of 
incorporation pursuant to name change was issued to the Company on 27th July, 2023.

2.	 Appointed Ms. Lakshmi Iyer as an Additional and Whole Time Director w.e.f. 19th May, 2023.

3.	 Ms. Shanti Ekambaram resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 19th May, 2023

4.	 Company has issued 75 Unsecured Unlisted Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures bearing a face value of ` 10,000,000 (Rupees One Crore 
only) for cash, at par for ` 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five Crore only) to SBI Life Insurance Company Limited on Private Placement basis

5.	 Company has also issued and allotted 3400 Unlisted Commercial Papers, bearing a face value of ` 5,00,000/- (Rupees Five Lakh Only) with maturity 
value aggregating to up to ` 1,70,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Seventy Crore Only).

6.	 Company has redeemed 118 Unsecured Unlisted Rated Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures amounting to ` 1,18,00,00,000/- (Rupees One 
Hundred and Eighteen Crore Only) during the financial year under review.

7.	 Company has redeemed 5500 Unlisted Commercial Papers amounting to ` 2,75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred and Seventy Five Crore Only) 
during the financial year under review.

For RJSY & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200

Sadhana Ramnihor Yadav  
Membership No.: A27559 

 Certificate of Practice No.: 16932 
Place: Mumbai	  ICSI UDIN: A027559F000240332 
Date: 25th April, 2024	 Peer Review Number: 3117/2023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this report



19

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

Statutory Reports

Directors’ Report

‘Annexure A’

To,
The Members,
KOTAK ALTERNATE ASSET MANAGERS LIMITED (Previously known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 The audit practices and processes as followed by us were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of 
the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the 
processes and practices, followed by us provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events 
etc.

5.	 The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For RJSY & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

Firm Registration No.: P2016MH057200

Sadhana Ramnihor Yadav  
Membership No.: A27559 

 Certificate of Practice No.: 16932 
Place: Mumbai	  ICSI UDIN: A027559F000240332 
Date: 25th April, 2024	 Peer Review Number: 3117/2023
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Form No. Aoc.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures  
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `)

1.	 Sl. No.				    : N.A.

2.	 Name of the subsidiary		  : N.A.

3.	 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting period: N.A.

4.	 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries: N.A.

5.	 Share capital			   : N.A.

6.	 Reserves & surplus		  : N.A.

7.	 Total assets			   : N.A.

8.	 Total Liabilities			   : N.A.

9.	 Investments			   : N.A.

10.	 Turnover				    : N.A.

11.	 Profit before taxation 		  : N.A.

12.	 Provision for taxation 		  : N.A.

13.	 Profit after taxation 		  : N.A.

14.	 Proposed Dividend 		  : N.A.

15.	 % of shareholding 		  : N.A.

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.: N.A.

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates/Joint Ventures Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund Limited

1.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2024

2.	S hares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end

	 No. 6,20,00,000

	 A mount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture ` 6,200 Lakh

	 Extend of Holding % 20%

3.	 Description of how there is significant influence Existing Holding of 20%

4.	 Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated Only have significant influence but not control

5.	N etworth attributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet ` 10,155.22 Lakh

6.	 Profit / Loss for the year

	 i.	 Considered in Consolidation ` 657.57 Lakh

	 i.	 Not Considered in Consolidation

1.	 Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations-N.A.
2.	 Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-N.A.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Sriniwasan			   Rajeev Saptarshi			   Devang Salian
Managing Director		  Whole-time Director		  Company Secretary
DIN: 00382697			   DIN: 09714663			   M. No. – ACS65902
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Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

To
The Members of

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statement

Opinion

1.	 We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as Kotak Investment 
Advisors Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and 
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended (together “standalone financial statements”), and notes to the standalone financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information other explanatory information.  

2.	 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of 
profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements” section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information

4.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s 
report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

	 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. 

	 We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the standalone financial statements

5.	 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

6.	 In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditors’ Report
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements

7.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements. 

8.	 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

	 •	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

	 •	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.  
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

	 •	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

	 •	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.   

	 •	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9.	 We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

10.	 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.  

12.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

	 (b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books except for the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 (as amended). 

	 (c)	 The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

	 (e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 
of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

	 (f)	 With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) 
above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Rules. 

	 (g)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.  
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	 (h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Rules, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial statements – Refer Note 
38 to the standalone financial statements; 

		  ii.	 The Company has made provision as at March 31, 2024, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts - Refer Note 44. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 
2024.

		  iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the 
year ended March 31, 2024.

		  iv.	 (a)	 The management has  represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note 51 to the standalone 
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (b)	 The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the Note 51 to the 
standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

			   (c)	 Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

		  v.	 The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

		  vi.	 Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account 
that have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. Other than one accounting software where the audit trail was not enabled at 
the application level, and three accounting software where no audit trail was enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes, 
the audit trail feature has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, the Company has 
used two accounting software hosted by third-party service providers for maintaining its books of account and in the absence of service 
organization controls auditors’ reports for the financial year, we are unable to comment whether the audit trail feature at the database 
level of the aforesaid software was enabled and operated throughout the year. In respect of the aforesaid software and databases, in 
the absence of an audit trail, the question of our commenting on whether the audit trail was tampered with, does not arise. Further, for 
the accounting software other than the aforesaid applications/databases, we did not notice any instance of the audit trail feature being 
tampered with. 

13.	 The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act. 

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264

Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner

Mumbai	 Membership Number: 101119
May 22, 2024	 UDIN: 24101119BKFOCJ3828
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report
Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly 
known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under clause 
(i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
1.	 We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly 

known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2.	 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

4.	 Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to 
standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5.	 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
6.	 A company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the 
standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements
7.	 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion 

or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion
8.	 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to standalone financial 

statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264

Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner

Mumbai	 Membership Number: 101119
May 22, 2024	 UDIN: 24101119BKFOCJ3828
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Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly 
known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited) on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books of account and records examined by us during 
the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

i. 	 (a)	 (A)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and 
Equipment.

		  (B)	 The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

	 (b)	 The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material 
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.	

	 (c)	 The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 4 to the standalone financial statements). Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (d)	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of 
our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if the change 
is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets does not arise. 

	 (e)	 Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company 
for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether 
the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in the standalone financial statements does not arise (Refer Note 51 to the standalone 
financial statements).

ii	 (a)	 The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)
(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

	 (b)	 During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ` 5 Crore, in aggregate, from a bank on the basis of 
security of current assets and investments made in real estate funds. The Company has filed monthly stock statements with such bank, which 
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account. Also, refer Note 51 to the standalone financial statements. 

iii	 (a)	 The Company has made investments in 8 companies and 7 Alternative Investment Funds granted unsecured loans to 3 other parties 
(employees) and stood guarantee to 1 Alternative Investment Fund during the year. 

		  The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respect to such loans and guarantees to parties 
other than associate company are as per the table given below:

Particulars Guarantees Unsecured Loans

Aggregate amount of guarantee provided during the year

-	 Other Party ` 50 lakh

Aggregate amount loan granted during the year

-	� Other Parties (Employees) ` 21.23 lakh 

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of the above cases

-	 Other Party ` 50 lakh

-	� Other Parties (Employees) ` 18.04 lakh

		�  (Also, refer Note 7, 11, 15 and 38 to the standalone financial statements).

		  During the year, the Company has not made investment in, granted secured/unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans to or stood guarantee, 
or provided security to it’s associate company. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

	 (b)	 In respect of the aforesaid investments, loans and guarantees, the terms and conditions under which such loans were granted/investments 
were made/guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
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	 (c)	 In respect of the loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the 
principal amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

	 (d)	 In respect of the loans/advances in nature of loans, there is no amount which is overdue for more than ninety days. 

	 (e)	 There were no loans which have fallen due during the year and were renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties 
to settle the existing overdue loans.

	 (f)	 There were no loans/ advances in nature of loans which were granted during the year, including to promoters/ related parties that were 
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 

iv. 	 In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of Sections 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the loans 
and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it. The provisions of sub-sections (2) to (11) of Section 186 are not applicable to 
the Company as it is an investment company as defined under explanation (a) to section 186 of the Act. The Company has not granted any loans or 
made any investments or provided any guarantees or security to the parties covered under Section 185. 

v.	 The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the 
Rules framed there under. 

vi.	 The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the 
services of the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax, though there has been a slight 
delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, goods and services tax and other material 
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. 

	 (b)	 There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

viii.	 There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Also, refer Note 51 to the standalone financial statements).

ix.	 (a)	 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

	 (b)	 On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority (Also, refer Note 51 to the standalone financial statements).

	 (c)	 The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

	 (d)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial 
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company. 

	 (e)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or 
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its associate company. The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

	 (f)	 According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its associate company. The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture.

x.	 (a)	 The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. 
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

	 (b)	 The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures 
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xi.	 (a)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing 
practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

	 (b)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing 
practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

	 (c)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing 
practices in India, and as represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xii.	 As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

xiii.	 The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details 
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related 
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.	 (a)	 In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

	 (b)	 The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

xv. 	 In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the 
reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.	 (a)	 The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (b)	 The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (c)	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (d)	 Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated 
whether the information provided by the management is accurate and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

xvii.	 The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii.	 There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix.	 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx.	 (a)	 In respect of other than ongoing projects, as at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under Section 
135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable (Also, refer Note 39 to the standalone financial 
statements). 

	 (b)	 The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act 
pursuant to ongoing project/(s) to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act (Also, refer 
Note 39 to the standalone financial statements).

xxi.	 The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in 
respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse LLP
Firm Registration Number: 301112E/E300264

Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant
Partner

Place: Mumbai	 Membership Number: 101119
Date: May 22, 2024 	 UDIN: 24101119BKFOCJ3828
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CIN: U65990MH1994PLC077472							     

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

 (` in lakh) 

 Particulars Note No.
As at 

31st March, 2024
As at 

31st March, 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4  436.89  436.76 
(b) Intangible assets 5  1,487.09  1,506.87 
(c) Intangible assets under development 6  22.95  12.00 
(d) Financial assets

(i)	 Investments 7  1,43,815.76  1,30,015.40 
(ii)	 Other non-current financial assets 8  125.83  26.55 

(e) Tax assets (net) 9  3,268.41  1,648.30 
(f) Other non-current assets 10  638.24  443.72 
Total non-current assets  1,49,795.17  1,34,089.60 
Current assets
(a) Financial assets

(i)	 Investments 11  1,260.39  2,130.81 
(ii)	 Trade receviables 12  6,714.80  6,446.60 
(iii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 13  671.66  222.90 
(iv)	 Bank balance other than (iii) above 14  5,274.82  18,795.74 
(v)	 Loans 15  17.57  0.02 
(vi)	 Other current financial assets 16  270.21  435.31 

(b) Other current assets 17  735.50  859.23 
Total current assets  14,944.95  28,890.61 
Total assets  1,64,740.12  1,62,980.21 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 18  896.89  896.89 
(b) Other equity 19  1,03,648.18  92,058.77 
Total equity  1,04,545.07  92,955.66 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 20  26,954.31  25,968.35 
(ii)	 Other financials liabilities 21  28.05  32.40 

(b) Provisions 22  311.14  393.75 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 36  3,415.13  2,381.57 
Total non-current liabilities  30,708.63  28,776.07 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 23  19,003.57  34,243.11 
(ii) Trade payables 24
	 (A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  839.40  39.87 
	 (B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  4,626.35  3,391.37 
(iii) Other current financial liabilities 25  3,759.57  1,936.42 

(b) Current tax liabilities (net) 26  334.84  292.23 
(c) Provisions 27  274.34  701.43 
(d) Other current liabilities 28  648.35  644.05 
Total current liabilities  29,486.42  41,248.48 
Total equity and liabilities  1,64,740.12  1,62,980.21 
Material and Other Accounting Policies 3 & 3A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
In terms of our report attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse LLP Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited
Firm Registration No : 301112E/E300264 (Formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant S Sriniwasan Rajeev Saptarshi Devang Salian
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 101119 DIN: 00382697 DIN: 09714663 M. No. ACS 65902

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024
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Standalone Balance Sheet and Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

CIN: U65990MH1994PLC077472

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024

 (₹ in lakh)

Particulars Note No.
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2023

REVENUE

I Revenue from operations 29  44,677.12  28,886.88 

II Other income 30  3,289.18  2,866.25 

III Total Income (I+II)  47,966.30  31,753.13 

IV EXPENSES

Employee benefits expenses 31  15,460.38  12,323.87 

Finance costs 32  4,186.47  2,343.39 

Depreciation and amortization expense 33  1,089.45  718.72 

Net impairment loss allowance on financial and contract assets 34  (6.74)  (12.87)

Other expenses 35  12,697.38  11,152.30 

Total Expenses (IV)  33,426.94  26,525.41 

V Profit before income tax (III - IV)  14,539.36  5,227.72 

VI Tax expense 36

(1)	 Current tax  2,013.13  1,332.79 

(2) 	 Current tax pertaining to prior periods  (92.22)  84.80 

(3) 	 Deferred tax charge/(credit)  1,033.57  (441.92)

Total tax expense/(credit) (1+2+3)  2,954.48  975.67 

VII Profit for the year (V-VI)  11,584.88  4,252.05 

VIII Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability  (13.84)  (82.62)

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  3.48  20.79 

 (10.36)  (61.83)

IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII+VIII)  11,574.52  4,190.22 

X Earnings per equity share 37

Basic & Diluted (₹)  129.17  47.41 

Material and Other Accounting Policies 3 & 3A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse LLP Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited
Firm Registration No : 301112E/E300264 (Formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant S Sriniwasan Rajeev Saptarshi Devang Salian
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 101119 DIN: 00382697 DIN: 09714663 M. No. ACS 65902

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024
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CIN: U65990MH1994PLC077472

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2024

 (₹ in lakh)

Particulars Note No.
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax  14,539.36  5,227.72 

Adjustments:

(a) Depreciation and amortization expense  1,089.45  718.72 

(b) Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments  (6.67)  (71.67)

(c) Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- current investment (unrealised)  (669.81)  274.13 

(d) Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- non current investment (unrealised)  (6,526.75)  267.13 

(e) Impairment Loss  (6.89)  (12.86)

(f) ESOP expense (provision)  12.36  73.26 

(g) Interest income  (757.02)  (538.61)

(h) Interest expense on borrowings  4,162.07  2,343.14 

(i) Provision for employee benefits  435.28  501.73 

(j) Foreign exchange fluctuation  2.53  -   

Operating profit before working capital changes  12,273.91  8,782.69 

Working capital changes

(a) Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  2,034.51  1,687.73 

(b) Increase / (decrease) in other current financial liabilities  1,823.27  260.18 

(c) Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities  4.30  39.96 

(d) Increase / (decrease) in other non-current financial liabilities  (4.35)  (21.30)

(e) Increase / (decrease) in provisions  (958.82)  (128.01)

(f) (Purchase) / sale of investments relating to IM and ID segments*  (4,783.11)  (35,567.76)

(g) (Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  (261.99)  (822.05)

(h) (Increase) / decrease in short-term loan  (17.55)  1.38 

(i) (Increase) / decrease in other current assets  123.73  (358.98)

(j) (Increase) / decrease in other non-current assets  (194.52)  (120.73)

(k) (Increase) / decrease in other current financial assets  165.10  (231.50)

(l) (Increase) / decrease in other non-current financial assets  (0.02)  (26.10)

Cash from / (used in)  operations  10,204.46  (26,504.49)

Income tax paid (net of refunds)  (3,494.92)  (2,860.68)

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) operating activities (A)  6,709.54  (29,365.17)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(a) Purchase of property, plant & equipment  (1,131.03)  (2,144.21)

(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment  56.96  82.24 

(c) Purchase of investments relating to 'Investments' segement  (950.26)  (875.05)

(d) Fixed deposits placed  (77,892.28)  (1,66,452.17)

(e) Proceeds from fixed deposits matured / redeemed  91,274.71  1,48,972.02 

(f) Interest received on fixed deposits  799.80  441.62 

Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) investing activities (B)  12,157.90  (19,975.55)
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flow

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

 (₹ in lakh)

Particulars Note No.
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended  

31st March, 2023

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a) Proceeds from borrowings  23,978.40  43,549.76 

(b) Repayment of borrowings  (39,300.00)  (5,900.00)

(c) Interest on borrowings  (3,094.05)  (1,703.23)

Net cash flows (used in) /generated from financing activities (C)  (18,415.65)  35,946.53 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  451.79  (13,394.19)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  222.94  13,617.13 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  674.73  222.94 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents as per balance sheet (Refer note 13)

	 Balances with banks in current account  464.60  99.68 

	 Balance in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  207.25  123.26 

Others

Unspent CSR account  2.88  -   

Cash and cash equivalents as restated at the year end  674.73  222.94 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Notes:

1)	 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in Ind AS 7 - ‘Cash Flow Statements’.

2)	 Net debt reconciliation - Refer Note no.20(ii)

3)	 Non- cash financing activity - ESOP from parent of ₹12.36 lakh (Previous year - ₹ 73.26 lakh)

* IM - Investment Management, ID - Investment Distribution

CIN: U65990MH1994PLC077472

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Continued)

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse LLP Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited
Firm Registration No : 301112E/E300264 (Formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant S Sriniwasan Rajeev Saptarshi Devang Salian
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 101119 DIN: 00382697 DIN: 09714663 M. No. ACS 65902

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024
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CIN: U65990MH1994PLC077472

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity  
for the year ended 31st March, 2024

A.	Equ ity Share Capital 

 (₹ in lakh)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the reporting year  896.89  896.89 

Changes in equity share capital during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end of the reporting year  896.89  896.89 

B.	Oth er equity 
 (` in lakh) 

Particulars  Securities 
premium 

Capital 
redemption 

reserve 

Translation 
reserve 

Debenture 
redemption 

reserve 

General 
reserve 

Contribution 
from parent 

Retained 
earnings  

Total 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  34,556.97  55.00  -    2,170.00  -    830.93  50,182.28  87,795.18 
Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    4,252.05  4,252.05 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year (net of tax)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    (61.83)  (61.83)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year ended 31st March, 2023

 -    -    -    -    -    -    4,190.22  4,190.22 

Transfers  -    -    0.11  1,610.00  -    73.26  (1,610.00)  73.37 
Less : Expenses on issue of 
equity shares during the year

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  34,556.97  55.00  0.11  3,780.00  -    904.19  52,762.50  92,058.77 

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    11,584.88  11,584.88 
Other comprehensive income for 
the year (net of tax)

 -    -    -    -  -    -    (10.36)  (10.36)

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year ended 31st March, 2024

 -    -    -    -    -    -    11,574.52  11,574.52 

Transfers  -    -    2.53  (430.00)  1,180.00  12.36  (750.00)  14.89 
Less : Expenses on issue of 
equity shares during the year

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  34,556.97  55.00  2.64  3,350.00  1,180.00  916.55  63,587.02 1,03,648.18 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For Price Waterhouse LLP Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited
Firm Registration No : 301112E/E300264 (Formerly known as Kotak Investment Advisors Limited)
Chartered Accountants

Sharad Vasant S Sriniwasan Rajeev Saptarshi Devang Salian
Partner Managing Director Whole Time Director Company Secretary
Membership No. 101119 DIN: 00382697 DIN: 09714663 M. No. ACS 65902

Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai Mumbai
Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 22nd May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024 Dated: 10th May, 2024
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

Notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 1: CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited (formerly known as “Kotak Investment Advisors Limited”) (“KAAML or the Company”) was incorporated on  
31st March, 1994 under the Companies Act, 1956. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (“KMBL”) holds 58.63% of the total issued and paid up equity share capital 
and 41.37% is held by Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited (“KMCC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of KMBL. The registered office of the company is 
located at 27 BKC, 7th Floor, BKC, Bandra East, Mumbai – 400 051. 

The Company acts as the investment manager of various alternative investment funds launched from time to time including in GIFT city. It also offers 
investment advisory services to High Networth Individuals (HNIs) and provides digital distribution of the financial products through the Cherry application.

Note 2: BASIS OF PREPARATION	

A.	Stat ement of compliance

	 The standalone financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after referred 
as ‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 The standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied consistently to all 
the periods presented in the standalone financial statements. These standalone financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s 
Board of Director’s on 10th May, 2024.

B.	Op erating Cycle

	 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the 
Schedule III (Division II) to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services and the time between provision of services and their realization 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification 
of assets and liabilities.

C.	Fu nctional and presentation currency

	 The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is also the Company’s functional currency. All the amounts are rounded to the 
nearest lakh with two decimals, except when otherwise indicated.

D.	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:

	 -	 Certain financial assets and liabilities - measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

	 -	 Net defined benefit (asset) / liability: plan assets are measured at fair value less present value of defined benefit obligation; and

	 - 	 Share-based payments - measured at fair value.

E.	 Use of estimates and judgements

	 The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of judgements, estimates and assumptions for some items, which 
might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. The actual amounts realized may 
differ from these estimates. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

	 Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

	I .	 Revenue

		  (a)	� Recognition of revenue over time or at a point in time:

			   The Company recognises revenue from investment management services and advisory services over time because the customer 
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the Company’s performance, as it performs.

		  (b)	V ariable performance fees

			   Variable performance fees is not included in the transaction price until it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. These 
performance fees are dependent upon exceeding specified investment return thresholds and other milestones. Such fees are recorded 
upon completion of the measurement period or achievement of milestones.	
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	II .	� Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

		  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of 
the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support.

	 III.	� Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations

		  The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation. Key actuarial assumptions which form the 
basis of above valuation includes discount rate, trends in salary escalation, demographics and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond 
to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Further details are disclosed in Note 42.

	IV .	 Recognition of deferred tax assets

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of 
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, depreciation carry-
forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized.

	V .	� Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies

		  The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past 
experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore, vary from the 
amount included in other provisions.

	 VI.	� Discounting of long-term financial assets/liabilities

		  All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. In case of financial assets/liabilities which are 
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest rate method.

	VII .	F air value of share-based payments

		  Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which depends 
on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model 
including the expected life of the share option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The 
Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with employees using a Black-Scholes model. Key assumptions made include 
expected volatility of share price, expected dividends and discount rate, under this option pricing model. For cash-settled share-based payment 
transactions, the liability needs to be remeasured at the end of each reporting period up to the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This requires a reassessment of the estimates used at the end of each reporting period.

		  For the measurement of the fair value of equity-settled transactions with employees at the grant date, the Company uses a Black-Scholes 
model.

		  The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 43.

	 VIII.	 Fair value of financial instruments

		  The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of 
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial 
liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques 
that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not 
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. For further details about determination of fair value please refer Note 44.

	I X.	 Business model assessment

		  Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payment of principal and interest (‘SPPI’) and the 
business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how group of financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance 
of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed. 
The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised 
prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for 
which the asset was held.
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Notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

	 X.	E ffective Interest Rate (EIR) method

		  The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant 
rate of return over the expected behavioural life of financial instruments and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at 
various stages and other characteristics of the financial instrument. This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the 
expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to benchmark rate and other fee income/expense that are 
integral parts of the instrument.

	 XI.	 Impairment of financial assets

		  The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on its financial assets measured at amortized cost and Fair 
Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) except investment in equity instruments. At each reporting date, the Company assesses 
whether the above financial assets are ‘credit‑ impaired’. A financial asset is ‘credit‑ impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of statistical 
models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies such as macroeconomic 
scenarios.

	 XII.	 Impairment of non-financial assets

		  Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher 
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from 
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the 
asset. The ‘value in use’ calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from the budget and do not include 
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of the 
assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as 
the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

	 XIII.	 Determination of lease term

		  Ind AS 116 – Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend 
or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on the expected lease term on lease 
by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In 
evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, 
costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the Company’s operations taking into account the location of 
the underlying asset and the availability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term 
reflects the current economic circumstances.

	 XIV.	 Discount rate for lease liability

		  The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated.

F.	 Adoption of new and revised standards

	 Below are list of new standards and amendments that are effective for the first time for periods commencing on or after 1st April, 2023  
(i.e. year ending 31st March, 2024).

	I nd AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements	

	 The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting 
policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general 
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

	I nd AS 12 – Income Taxes

	 The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments 
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to 
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company is evaluating the impact, if any, 
in its financial statements.

	�I nd AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

	 The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting 
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in 
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financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in 
financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any 
significant impact in its financial statements.

G.	N ew amendments issued but not effective:

	 There are no new accounting standards/amendments issued by the regulators as on date which would become effective from next year.

Note 3: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES	

A.	F inancial Instruments

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

	F inancial assets

	I nitial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or 
loss, transaction fees or costs that are directly attributable and incremental to the origination/acquisition of the financial asset unless otherwise 
specifically mentioned in the accounting policies.

	 All regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Purchase or sale of unquoted instrument 
is recognised on the closing date or as and when the transaction is completed as per terms mentioned in relevant transaction agreement / document.

	 Regular way purchase or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the marketplace.	

	 Classification							     

	 The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value based on the business model for 
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

	 Business model assessment

	 The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held such that it best reflects the way the business is 
managed and is consistent with information provided to the management. The information considered includes:

	 -	 the objectives for the portfolio, in particular, management’s strategy of focusing on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular 
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash 
flows through the sale of the assets;

	 -	 the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity. However, 
information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for 
managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised;

	 -	 the risks that affect the performance of the business model, the financial assets held within that business model and how those risks are 
managed.

	� Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

	 For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as 
consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time 
and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as profit margin.

	 In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual 
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

	 -	 reset terms

	 -	 contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

	 -	 prepayment and extension terms; and

	 -	 features that modify consideration of the time value of money – e.g. periodical reset of interest rates.
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	S ubsequent measurement

	 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

	F inancial assets at amortised cost

	 A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

	 - 	 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

	 -	 the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

	 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest (EIR) method. Amortised 
cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and reported as part 
of interest income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses if any, arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	�F inancial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) – Debt Investments

	 A Debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions:

	 -	 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets; and

	 -	 the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding.

	 After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method. The impairment losses, if any, are recognized through Statement of Profit and Loss. The loss allowance is recognized in OCI and 
does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

	� Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

	 Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified to be measured at FVTPL.

	 Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 All equity investments except for investments in subsidiary/associate/joint ventures are measured at fair value. Equity and debt instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL.

	E quity instruments at FVOCI

	 The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the Company has elected to classify irrevocably 
some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 and 
are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

	 Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss as dividend income when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds 
as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an 
impairment assessment.

	F inancial liabilities and equity instruments:

	 Classification as debt or equity

	 Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

	E quity instruments	

	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments 
issued by Company are recognised at the proceeds received. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are recognised as a deduction from equity.
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	F inancial liabilities

	 The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss. Liabilities which are classified at fair value through profit or loss, including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at 
fair value.

	I mpairment of Financial Assets

	� Methodology for computation of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

	 The financial instruments covered within the scope of ECL include financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI, such as trade receivables, 
investment in debt instruments, security deposit, employee loans, balances with banks and other financial assets. ECL has not been determined on 
financial assets measured at FVTPL.

	 The loss allowance has been measured using lifetime ECL except for financial assets on which there has been no significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition. In such cases, loss allowance has been measured at 12 month ECL.

	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI is credit-impaired. A financial asset is 
credit- impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred 
since initial recognition. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

	 -	 significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

	 -	 a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

	 -	 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower 
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;	

	 -	 it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

	 -	 the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

	 ECL are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses, measured as follows:

	 -	 Financial assets that are not credit impaired at the reporting date:

		  ECL has been estimated by determining the probability of default (‘PD’), Exposure At Default (‘EAD’) and loss given default (‘LGD’). PD has been 
computed using observed history of default and converted into forward looking PD’s using suitable macro-economic variable data.

	 -	 Financial assets that are credit impaired at the reporting date:

		  ECL has been estimated as the difference between the gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

	 For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach. It recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date, right from its initial recognition. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on 
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.	

	 If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a new one due to financial difficulties of 
the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether the financial asset should be derecognised:

	 -	 If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset 
are included in calculating cash shortfalls from the existing asset.

	 -	 If the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing asset and the recognition of modified asset, the modified asset is 
considered as a new financial asset. The date of the modification is treated as the date of initial recognition of that financial asset when 
applying the impairment requirements to the modified financial asset. The impairment loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12 
month expected credit losses until there is a significant increase in credit risk. If modified financial asset is credit-impaired at initial recognition, 
the financial asset is recognized as originated credit impaired asset.
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	 Criteria used for determination of movement from stage 1 (12 month ECL) to stage 2 (lifetime ECL) and stage 3 (Lifetime ECL)

	 The Company applies a three-stage approach to measure ECL on financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI. The assets migrate 
through the following three stages based on an assessment of qualitative and quantitative considerations:

	 Stage 1: 12 month ECL:	

	 For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that are not credit impaired upon origination, 
the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised. Interest income is 
accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

	 Stage 2: Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired):

	 At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets since initial recognition. 
In determining whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company uses days past due (DPD) information and other 
qualitative factors to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.	

	 For credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL 
is recognised. Interest income is accrued using the effective interest rate on the gross carrying amount.

	 Stage 3: Lifetime ECL (credit impaired):

	 Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the asset have occurred. For financial assets that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by 
applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of loss allowance).

	 If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk since origination, then the 
Expected Credit Loss reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months ECL.

	 For financial assets whose significant payment obligations are only after next 12 months, life time ECL has been applied.

	 Method used to compute lifetime ECL:

	 The Company calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at EIR. A cash shortfall 
is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the present value of cash flows that the entity 
expects to receive. The Company applies statistical techniques to estimate 12 month ECL and lifetime ECL.

	� Manner in which forward looking assumptions has been incorporated in ECL estimates:

	 The Company considers its historical loss experience and adjusts it for current observable data. In addition, the Company uses reasonable forecasts 
of future economic conditions including expert judgement to estimate the amount of expected credit losses. The methodology and assumptions 
including any forecasts of future economic conditions are periodically reviewed and changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

	W rite-offs							     

	 Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the 
Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts. 
If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is 
then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instruments in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. However, financial assets that are written off may be subject to enforcement activities to comply with the Company’s procedures for 
recovery of amounts due.

	� Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities	

	F inancial assets							     

	 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

	 -	 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

	 -	 The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in 
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the 
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risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but 
has transferred control of the asset.

	 On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of 
the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any 
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	F inancial liabilities

	 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

	� Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities	

	F inancial assets

	 If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified financial asset are substantially different. 
If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this 
case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

	 If the cash flows of the modified financial asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of  the financial 
asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or modified 
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the 
gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit and loss account. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified 
financial asset and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset. If such a modification is carried out because of financial 
difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income.

	F inancial liabilities	

	 The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In 
this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 Offsetting financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only if there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

	 Measurement of fair values

	 The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require fair value measurement of financial instruments such as investment in equity instruments, 
mutual funds, debentures, preference shares and units of the venture fund/alternate investment fund.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

	 Management uses its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation 
techniques commonly used by market participants are applied.

	 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

	 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

	 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices).

	 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

	 The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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B.	 Property, plant and equipment

	 i.	 Recognition and measurement

		  Items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

		  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

		  a.	 Its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

		  b.	 Any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management.

		  Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted and depreciated for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment 

		  Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

	 ii.	S ubsequent expenditure

		  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
Company. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to standalone statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

	 iii.	 Depreciation							     

		  Deprecation is provided on a pro-rata basis on a Straight Line Method over the estimated useful life of the assets at rates which are equal to or 
higher than the rates prescribed under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets.

		  Estimated useful lives of assets based on technical evaluation by management are as follows:

		  Computers 			  3 years

		  Vehicles 			   4 years

		  Office Equipment 		 5 years

		  Assets costing less than ₹ 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

		  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if appropriate.

C.	I ntangible assets

	 i.	 Recognition and measurement 

		  Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible 
asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing 
authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making ‘the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and 
rebates. Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase/completion is recognized as an expense when incurred unless it 
is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of 
performance and such expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost 
of the asset.

	 ii.	S ubsequent expenditure

		  Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

	 iii.	 Amortisation

		  The intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful lives as given below:

		  Software (including development) expenditure 		  3 years

		  Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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D.	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue (other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from 
contracts with customers.

	 The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with 
customers:

	 Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 
obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.

	 Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or 
service to the customer.

	 Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

	 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, 
the Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the 
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

	 Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

	 Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

	F ees

	 a.	 Revenue from investment management services is recognized over the tenure of service at the rates specified in the investment management 
agreement from the date of initial closing of funds under management. For certain funds managed by the Company, management fees is 
based on the net asset value of the fund. Hence, such fees are considered as variable consideration which are included in the transaction price 
to the extent that no significant revenue reversal will occur (i.e. when the uncertainties related to the variability are resolved).

	 b.	 Establishment fees is recorded as revenue over the tenure of the fund since the performance obligation is satisfied over the tenure of the 
services provided.

	 c.	 Revenue from advisory services are recognized over the tenure of service as per terms of contract. Advisory fees related to successful 
completion of a milestone is recognised as revenue only when such milestone is achieved. Revenue from rendering of investment advisory 
business is recognised on a straight line basis over the period when services are rendered, which is in accordance with the terms of the 
mandate letters entered between the Company and the HNI client.

	 Contract costs

	 Set-up costs and referral fees which are incremental cost of obtaining a contract are recognised as an asset and amortised over the tenure of the 
contract.

	�I ncome from venture capital fund / alternate investment fund

	 Revenue on account of distribution from venture capital funds / alternate investment funds is recognised on the receipt of the distribution letter or 
when right to receive is established.

	I ncome by way of Referral fee

	 Income by way of referral fee charged to clients who evinces interest in availing opportunities available within the company. Income is recognized on 
milestone basis as and when milestone is achieved.

	I nterest Income

	 Interest income on financial assets is recognized on an accrual basis using effective interest method. Interest revenue is continued to be recognized 
at the original effective interest rate applied on the gross carrying amount of assets falling under impairment stages 1 and 2 as against on amortised 
cost for the assets falling under impairment stage 3.
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	 Dividend Income

	 Dividend income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive the dividend is established.

E.	I ncome Tax

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to 
items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI).

	 Current Tax

	 Current tax [including Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’)] is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

	 Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss either in other comprehensive income or 
in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically 
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate.	

	 Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it 
intends to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

	 MAT credit available is recognised as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.

	 Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and based on management’s judgement, are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

	 Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be used.	

	 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.	

	 The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting 
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

	 a.	 the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

	 b.	 the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

F. 	 Borrowings

	 Borrowings are measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised 
in standalone statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of 
loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this 
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn 
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

G.	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are 
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition 
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or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost 
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

H.	 Trade receivable

	 Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognised 
initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at fair 
value.

	 The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Note 3A: OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.	 Leases							     

	 At the inception of the contract, company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A contract is, or contains a lease if it conveys the use 
of an identified asset for a period in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, the company assesses whether:

	 i.	 the contract involves the use of identified asset;

	 ii.	 the company has substantially all the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of lease ; and

	 iii.	 the company has right to direct the use of the asset.

	 As Lessee							     

	 The Company has used practical expedients while applying Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by 
class of assets and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis. The company recognises the lease payments 
associated with these leases as on expense in statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The related cash flow are classified as operating 
activities.

B.	Empl oyee benefits

	 Defined Contribution Plan

	 Provident Fund

	 The Company’s contribution to government provident fund is considered as defined contribution plans and is charged as an expense based on the 
amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees. The Company has no further obligations.

	S uperannuation Fund

	 The Company contributes a sum equivalent to 15% of eligible employee’s salary subject to a maximum of ₹1 Lakh per annum per employee to a 
Superannuation Fund administered by trustees and managed by Kotak Life Insurance Company. The Company recognizes such contributions as an 
expense in the year they are incurred.

	N ew Pension Scheme

	 The Company contributes up to 10% of eligible employees’ salary per annum, to the New Pension Fund administered by PFRDA appointed pension 
fund manager. The Company recognizes such contributions as an expense in the year they are incurred.

	 Defined Benefit Plan

	G ratuity

	 The Company accounts for the liability for future gratuity benefits based on an actuarial valuation. The Company contributes to a Trust “Kotak 
Investment Advisors Employees Gratuity Fund” which has taken group gratuity policies with Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited, fellow 
subsidiary. The trust is recognized by the Income Tax Authorities and is administered through trustees and / or the insurance companies.

	 The liability or asset recognised in the standalone balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, as per the independent actuarial valuation report.
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	 The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. The present 
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

	 The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. 
This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

	 Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which 
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent period. They are included in 
retained earnings in the standalone statement of changes in equity and in the standalone balance sheet.

	 Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in 
standalone statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

	 Compensated Absences

	 Compensated absences which accrue to employees and which are expected to be availed within twelve months immediately following the year end 
are reported as expenses during the year in which the employees performs the services that the benefit covers and the liabilities are reported at the 
undiscounted amount of the benefit, where the availment or encashment is otherwise not expected to wholly occur within the next twelve months. 
The liability on account of the benefit is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.

	 Other Employee Benefits	

	 The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised 
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include performance incentives.

	 As per the Company policy, employees of the Company are eligible for an award after completion of a specified number of years of service with 
the Company. The obligation is measured at the Balance Sheet date on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method 
conducted by actuary of fellow subsidiary. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

C. 	Shar e based payments

	�E mployees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs”) - Equity settled

	 The ultimate holding company of the company operates share option schemes for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible 
participants who contribute to the success of the Company’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Company  receive remuneration in 
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity settled transactions”).

	 The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees and directors for grants is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they 
are granted.

	 The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in standalone profit or loss, together with a corresponding increase in reserves, representing 
contribution received from the ultimate holding company, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The 
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which 
the vesting period has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to 
standalone profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

	S tock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”) - Cash Settled

	 The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of share appreciation rights, which are settled in cash, is recognised as an expense with 
a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period the employees unconditionally become entitled to payment. The liability is measured at the end 
of each reporting date up to and including settlement date, with changes in the fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in ‘Stock 
Appreciation Rights’ under the head Employee Benefits Expenses.

D.	 Bonus							     

	 The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is 
a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

E.	�F oreign Currency transactions & Translation Reserve

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Foreign exchange 
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gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss.

	 Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss, within 
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other 
gains/(losses).

	 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange 
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

	 The financial statements of branch incorporated in Gift City, SEZ which are in the nature of non-integral foreign operations are translated on the 
following basis (a) Income and expenses are converted at the average rate of exchange applicable for the year (b) Monetary assets and liabilities are 
translated at the closing rate as at the balance sheet date. The exchange difference arising out of year end translation is debited/ credited to “ Foreign 
Currency Translation Reserve”.

F.	Ear nings per share

	 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference 
dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for events such as bonus 
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares), if any, that have changed the number of equity 
shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent 
that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

	 For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

G.	Impa irment of non-financial assets

	 The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists. If 
the carrying amount of the assets exceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognised for such excess amount in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

	 The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future 
cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor.

	 When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer 
exists or may have decreased, such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, to the extent the amount was 
previously charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognized.

H.	 Provisions and contingent liabilities

	 Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date and are 
not discounted to its present value.

	 A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that 
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in 
the financial statements.

I.	S egment reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions for which discrete 
financial information is available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the CODM evaluates the Company’s performance 
and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments. For detailed 
disclosure, refer Note 48.
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J.	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. It also comprises of short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

K.	 Cash Flow Statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions 
of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing 
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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Note 4: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(` in lakh) 

Particulars Computers Vehicles Office equipment Total 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  151.70  448.51  0.77  600.98 
Additions during the year  130.29  232.58  0.31  363.18 
Disposals during the year  -    (191.88)  -    (191.88)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  281.99  489.21  1.08  772.28 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2022  55.73  292.60  0.57  348.90 
Depreciation for the year  69.72  97.11  0.10  166.93 
Disposals during the year  -    (180.31)  -    (180.31)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  125.45  209.40  0.67  335.52 
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023  156.54  279.81  0.41  436.76 
Balance as at 1st April, 2023  281.99  489.21  1.08  772.28 
Additions during the year  107.17  148.56  39.15  294.88 
Disposals during the year  (0.73)  (92.79)  -    (93.52)
Foreign exchange fluctuation/others  0.09  (0.77)  0.08  (0.60)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  388.52  544.21  40.31  973.04 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1st April, 2023  125.45  209.40  0.67  335.52 
Depreciation for the year  117.98  120.73  5.76  244.47 
Disposals during the year  (0.73)  (43.17)  -    (43.90)
Foreign exchange fluctuation/others -  0.06  -    0.06 
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  242.70  287.02  6.43  536.15 
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024  145.82  257.19  33.88  436.89 

Impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss
There is no impairment loss recognised for property, plant and equipment

Commitment to purchase property, plant and equipment
There are no commitment to purchase property, plant and equipment

Note 5: INTANGIBLE ASSETS
 (` in lakh) 

Particulars Software Total 

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  475.52  475.52 
Additions during the year  1,805.98  1,805.98 
Disposals during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  2,281.50  2,281.50 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment as at 1st April, 2022  222.84  222.84 
Amortisation for the year  551.79  551.79 
Disposals during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2023  774.63  774.63 
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2023  1,506.87  1,506.87 
Balance as at 1st April, 2023  2,281.50  2,281.50 
Additions during the year  825.20  825.20 
Disposals during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  3,106.70  3,106.70 
Accumulated amortisation and impairment as at 1st April, 2023  774.63  774.63 
Amortisation for the year  844.98  844.98 
Disposals during the year  -    -   
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  1,619.61  1,619.61 
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2024  1,487.09  1,487.09 

Impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss		
There is no impairment loss recognised for intangible assets
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Note 6: INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Intangible assets under development  22.95  12.00 

Total  22.95  12.00 

As at 31st March 2024

(` in lakh) 

Intangible asset under Development

 Amount in CWIP* for a period of 

TotalLess than  1 
Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 

3 Years

Projects in progress  10.95  12.00  -    -    22.95 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  10.95  12.00  -    -    22.95 

As at 31st March 2023

(` in lakh) 

Intangible asset under Development

 Amount in CWIP* for a period of 

TotalLess than  1 
Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 

3 Years

Projects in progress  12.00  -    -    -    12.00 

Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  12.00  -    -    -    12.00 

* Capital work-in-progress

Note 7: NON-CURRENT ASSETS - INVESTMENTS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Unquoted (Carried at Cost)

Equity shares

In Associate

6,20,00,000 units (Previous year 6,20,00,000 units) of Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund Limited  6,200.00  6,200.00 

Unquoted (Carried at FVTPL)

Equity shares  4,766.24  4,154.47 

Preference shares  11,120.14  8,865.95 

Debentures  10,058.13  500.00 

Investments in units of venture capital funds / alternate investments funds  1,11,671.25  1,10,294.98 

Total  1,43,815.76  1,30,015.40 

Aggregate amount of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  -    -   

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  1,43,815.76  1,30,015.40 
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Note 8: OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Security Deposit  26.57  26.55 

Fixed deposits with banks with remaining maturity of more than 12 months  100.00  -   

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (0.74)  -*   

Total  125.83  26.55 

* Denotes amount less than ₹500

Note 9: TAX ASSETS (NET)
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Advance tax  9,218.49  5,680.95 

Less: Provision for income tax  (5,950.08)  (4,032.65)

 Total  3,268.41  1,648.30 

Note 10: OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Contract cost (Refer note 50)  556.55  426.70 

Post employment benefit obligations, net of plan liability (Refer note 42)  74.79  -   

Prepaid expenses  6.90  17.02 

Total  638.24  443.72 

Note 11: CURRENT ASSETS - INVESTMENT
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Quoted (Carried at FVTPL)

Debentures and Bonds*  545.01  575.92 

Total (Quoted)  545.01  575.92 

Unquoted (Carried at FVTPL)

Equity shares  39.45  196.94 

Preference shares  23.87  84.60 

Debentures and Bonds*  112.60  266.30 

Investments in units of venture capital funds / alternate investments funds  539.46  1,007.05 

Total (Unquoted)  715.38  1,554.89 

Total (Quoted + Unquoted)  1,260.39  2,130.81 

* Debentures and Bonds include stock in trade of ₹ 577.54 Lakh (P.Y. ₹ 824.34 Lakh)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments (gross)^  545.01  575.92 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  545.01  575.92 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments  715.38  1,554.89 

^as all quoted investments are carried at FVTPL, the aggregate amount of quoted investments of ₹ 545.01 lakh (P.Y. ₹ 575.92 lakh) is equal to the market value.
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Note 12: TRADE RECEIVABLE

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good  6,739.92  6,477.93

Significant increase in credit risk (Refer Note.44 D(ii))  -    -   

Sub total  6,739.92  6,477.93 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (25.12) (31.33)

Total  6,714.80  6,446.60 

(` in lakh) 

Particulars

 As at 31st March 2024 

Total
Unbilled Not Due

Less 
than 6 

Months

6 
Month- 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good  6,635.68  -    104.24  -    -    -    -    6,739.92 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables  - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total 6,635.68  -    104.24  -    -    -    -   6,739.92 

(` in lakh)

Particulars

 As at 31st March 2023

Total
Unbilled Not Due

Less 
than 6 

Months

6 
Month- 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good  6,336.85  -    141.08  -    -    -    -    6,477.93 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit risk

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total 6,336.85  -    141.08  -    -    -    -   6,477.93 
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Note 13: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Balances with banks in current account  464.60  99.68 

Balance in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months  207.25  123.26 

 671.85  222.94 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (0.19)  (0.04)

Total  671.66  222.90 

Note 14: BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Balance in fixed deposits with original maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months  738.74  18,799.41 

Balance in fixed deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months  4,535.46  -   

Earmarked balances with bank:

	 Unspent CSR account  2.88  -   

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (2.26)  (3.67)

Total  5,274.82  18,795.74 

Note 15: LOANS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to employees  18.04  0.02 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (0.47)  -   

Total  17.57  0.02 

Note 16: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Advances to related parties  2.93  57.97 

Advances recoverable in cash  269.92  380.46 

Sub total  272.85  438.43 

Less: Impairment loss allowance  (2.64)  (3.12)

Total  270.21  435.31 
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Note 17: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Advances other than capital advances

Balance with government authorities  449.72  397.35 

Service Tax (pre-deposit) paid under protest  2.29  2.29 

Contract cost (Refer note 50)  98.23  79.20 

Prepaid expenses  91.02  128.40 

Prepayment to suppliers  92.46  248.26 

Other receivables  1.78  3.73 

Total  735.50  859.23 

Note 18: EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Authorised

1,00,00,000 (31st March, 2023: 1,00,00,000) equity shares of ₹10 each with voting rights  1,000.00  1,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up

89,68,864 (31st March, 2023: 89,68,864) equity shares of ₹10 each with voting rights  896.89  896.89 

a.	 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :

 (` in lakh) 

Particulars  No. of shares  Amount 

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each, fully paid-up

As at 1st April, 2022  89,68,864  896.89 

Add/(less) : Movement during the year  -    -   

As at 31st March, 2023  89,68,864  896.89 

Add/(less) : Movement during the year  -    -   

As at 31st March, 2024  89,68,864  896.89 

b.	 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

	 Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share 
held. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

c. 	Shar es held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  52,58,831 58.63%  52,58,831 58.63%

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited  37,10,033 41.37%  37,10,033 41.37%

 89,68,864 100%  89,68,864 100%
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d.	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Group

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  52,58,831 58.63%  52,58,831 58.63%

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited  
(60 Shares are held jointly with its nominees)

 37,10,033 41.37%  37,10,033 41.37%

 89,68,864 100%  89,68,864 100%

e. 	 Disclosures of Shareholding of Promoters - Shares held by the Promoters:

Particulars
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  52,58,831 58.63%  52,58,831 58.63%

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited 
(60 Shares are held jointly with its nominees)

 37,10,033 41.37%  37,10,033 41.37%

Total  89,68,864 100%  89,68,864 100%

Note 19: OTHER EQUITY
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Capital redemption reserve  55.00  55.00 

Debenture redemption reserve  3,350.00  3,780.00 

Securities premium  34,556.97  34,556.97 

Contribution from parent  916.55  904.19 

Forex translation reserve  2.64  0.11 

General reserve  1,180.00  -   

Retained earnings  63,587.02  52,762.50 

Total  1,03,648.18  92,058.77 

Notes

1. 	Natur e and purpose of reserves other than Retained earnings

	 Capital Redemption Reserve

	 The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium account, a sum equal to the 
nominal value of shares so purchased shall be transferred to capital redemption reserve account. The amounts credited to the capital  redemption 
reserve, may be applied by the Company, in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus 
shares.

	 Debenture Redemption Reserve

	 The Companies Act, 2013 requires the companies to create adequate debenture redemption reserve out of the profit available for payment of 
dividend. The adequacy of Debenture Redemption Reserve shall be ten percent of the value of the outstanding debentures. The amount credited to 
Debenture Redemption Reserve shall not be utilized by the Company except for the purpose of redemption of debentures.
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	 Securities Premium

	 Premium collected on issue of securities are accumulated as part of securities premium. Utilisation of such reserve is restricted by the Companies 
Act, 2013.

	C ontribution from Parent

	 Capital contribution from Parent represents fair value of the employee stock option plan. These option are issued by the parent company “Kotak 
Mahindra Bank Limited” to the employees of the Company.

	 General Reserve

	 General Reserve represents appropriation of retained earnings and are available for distribution to shareholders

2.	Oth er equity movement

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening balance  55.00  55.00 

Addition during the year  -    -   

Closing balance  55.00  55.00 

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening balance  3,780.00  2,170.00 

Add: Amount transferred from Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss during the year  750.00  1,610.00 

Less: Amount transferred to General Reserve  (1,180.00)  -   

Closing balance  3,350.00  3,780.00 

Securities Premium

Opening balance  34,556.97  34,556.97 

Addition during the year  -    -   

Closing balance  34,556.97  34,556.97 

Contribution from Parent

Opening balance  904.19  830.93 

Addition during the year  12.36  73.26 

Closing balance  916.55  904.19 

Forex Translation Reserve

Opening balance  0.11  -   

Addition during the year  2.53  0.11 

Closing balance  2.64  0.11 

General Reserve

Opening balance  -    -   

Addition during the year  1,180.00  -   

Closing balance  1,180.00  -   

Retained Earnings

Opening balance  52,762.50  50,182.28 

Addition during the year  11,574.52  4,190.22 

Amount transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve  (750.00)  (1,610.00)

Closing balance  63,587.02  52,762.50 



56

Annual Report 2023-24

Notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 20: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Non Convertible debentures (Redeemable at par)

Unsecured (Refer note (i) below)  26,954.31  25,968.35 

 Total  26,954.31  25,968.35 

Notes

(i)	 Interest and repayment terms of Borrowings :

	N on Convertible debentures 

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
Maturity 

Date

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Interest 
Range (%)

Balance 
Outstanding

Face Value
Interest 

Range (%)
Balance 

Outstanding
Face Value

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Jul-23  -    -   $  -    8.66  2,545.38 $  2,500.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Mar-24  -    -   #  -    7.36  5,504.98 #  5,500.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Mar-24  -    -   #    -    7.36  3,817.88 #   3,800.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity May-24  6.98  6,657.30 ^  6,500.00  6.98  6,657.74 ^  6,500.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Sep-25  10.00  8,371.18 @  8,000.00  10.00  8,368.88 @  8,000.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Feb-26  8.70  11,572.19 !  11,500.00  8.70  11,558.10 !  11,500.00 

Fixed Interest Rate; Repayable at maturity Sep-26  8.63  7,799.56 *  7,500.00  -    -    -   

34,400.23 ** 33,500.00 38,452.96 ** 37,800.00 

	 ** includes current maturities of Non-Convertible debentures amounting to ₹ 7,445.92 lakh (P.Y. ₹ 12,484.61 lakh)  as per Note 23: Current Liabilities - Borrowings

	 $Interest of ₹ NIL (P.Y. ₹ 45.38 lakh was due for payment in Jul 2023) 

	 # Interest of ₹ NIL (P.Y. ₹ 22.86 lakh was due for payment in Sep 2023) 

	 ^Interest of ₹ 221.89 lakh (P.Y. ₹ 157.74 lakh) is due for payment in May 2024 (P.Y. May 2023)

	 @ Interest of ₹ 800.00 lakh (P.Y. ₹ 368.88 lakh) is due for payment in Sep 2024 (P.Y. Sep 2023)

	 ! Interest of ₹ 997.76 lakh (P.Y. ₹ 89.75 lakh) is due for payment in Feb 2025 (P.Y. Feb 2024)

	 *Interest of ₹ 647.25 lakh is due for payment in Sep 2025

	 Interest and repayment terms mentioned above also include the current maturities of Non convertible debentures as per note 23: Current Liabilities 
- Borrowings.

	 The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to its lenders.
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ii)	 The changes in the liabilities or movement in net debt (Non convertible debentures and commercial papers) during the year arising from financing 
activities are as below:														            

 (` in lakh) 

Particulars Commercial Papers
Non convertible 

debentures
Liabilities from 

financing activities

Net Debt as on 1st April, 2022  -    21,921.79  21,921.79 

Borrowing during the year  24,049.76  19,500.00  43,549.76 

Repayment during the year  (2,500.00)  (3,400.00)  (5,900.00)

Interest expense during the year  208.74  2,134.40  2,343.14 

Interest paid during the year  -    (1,703.23)  (1,703.23)

Net Debt as on 31st March, 2023  21,758.50  38,452.96  60,211.46 

Borrowing during the year  16,478.40  7,500.00  23,978.40 

Repayment during the year  (27,500.00)  (11,800.00)  (39,300.00)

Interest expense during the year  820.75  3,341.32  4,162.07 

Interest paid during the year  -    (3,094.05)  (3,094.05)

Net Debt as on 31st March, 2024  11,557.65  34,400.23  45,957.88 

Note 21: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Employees related payable  28.05  32.40 

Total  28.05  32.40 

Note 22: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences  77.44  70.69 

Employees related payable  233.70  323.06 

Total  311.14  393.75 

Note 23: CURRENT LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS*
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Unsecured 

Current maturities of Non Convertible Debentures  7,445.92  12,484.61

Unsecured commerical paper  11,557.65  21,758.50 

Total  19,003.57  34,243.11 

* Refer note 20 for the disclosure of repayment terms and interest on borrowings
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Note 24: TRADE PAYABLES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Trade payables

Due to Micro, small and medium enterprises  839.40  39.87 

Dues to others  4,626.35  3,391.37 

Total  5,465.75  3,431.24 

(` in lakh) 

Particulars

 As at 31st March 2024 

Total
Unbilled Not Due

Less 
than 1 
Year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME  797.68  -    41.62  0.10  -    -    839.40 

(ii) Undisputed dues - Others  3,357.15  -    1,265.21  3.99  -    -    4,626.35 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total 4,154.83  -   1,306.83  4.09  -    -   5,465.75 

Particulars

 As at 31st March 2023

Total
Unbilled Not Due

Less 
than 1 
Year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More 
than 3 
years

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME  -    -    39.87  -    -    -    39.87 

(ii) Undisputed dues - Others  -    -    3,391.37  -    -    -    3,391.37 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    -   3,431.24  -    -    -   3,431.24 

Note 25: OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Employees related payable  3,759.57  1,936.42 

Total  3,759.57  1,936.42 

Note 26: CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Provision for income tax  1,782.70  1,739.98 

Less: Advance Tax  (1,447.86)  (1,447.75)

Total  334.84  292.23 
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Note 27: CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity  -    210.22 
Compensated Absences  24.35  23.27 
Stock Appreciation Rights  249.99  467.94 
Total  274.34  701.43 

Note 28: OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Statutory dues payable  644.10  639.27 
Contract Liabilities (Refer note 50)  4.25  4.78 
Total  648.35  644.05 

Note 29: REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Management and Advisory Fees  27,021.28  21,510.19 
Other operating revenues
Investments in Venture Capital Funds / Alternate Investment Funds
	 Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes - current investments  (42.90)  (283.73)
	 Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes - non current investments  17,698.74  7,660.42 
Total  44,677.12  28,886.88 
Net Fair value change
	 Unrealised  5,339.84  (2,657.78)
	 Realised  12,316.00  10,034.47 

Note 30: OTHER INCOME
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Interest income
	 Fixed Deposits  757.02  483.46 
	 Debentures  568.91  55.15 
  	 Income tax refund  -    18.79 
  	 Others  0.35  (0.23)
Investment in other instruments carried at FVTPL
Net gains / (loss) on fair value changes - current investments  44.70  9.60 
Net gains / (loss) on fair value changes - non current investments  1,814.65  2,126.00 
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  6.67  71.67 
Others  96.88  101.81 
Total  3,289.18  2,866.25 
Net Fair value change
	 Unrealised  1,859.46  2,135.60 
	 Realised  (0.11)  -   
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Note 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Salaries and wages  14,186.48  11,005.40 

Contribution to provident and other funds  666.94  537.08 

Employee Stock Options Plan  57.58  196.02 

Stock Appreciation Rights  290.35  591.12 

Gratuity  143.10  91.33 

Compensated absences  1.83  (180.72)

Staff welfare expenses  114.10  83.64 

Total  15,460.38  12,323.87 

Note 32: FINANCE COSTS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Interest expense on debentures  3,341.32  2,134.40 

Amortisation of discount on commercial paper  820.75  208.74 

Interest expense - others  24.40  0.25 

Total  4,186.47  2,343.39 

Note 33: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  244.47  166.93 

Amortization of intangible assets  844.98  551.79 

Total  1,089.45  718.72 

Note 34: IMPAIRMENT LOSS ALLOWANCE ON FINANCIAL AND CONTRACT ASSETS
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Impairment loss on:

Loans  0.47  (0.02)

Trade Receivables  (6.21)  (14.92)

Bank Balance  (1.22)  0.81 

Other Financial assets  0.22  1.26 

Total  (6.74)  (12.87)



61 Financial Statements

Notes

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

Notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Note 35: OTHER EXPENSES
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Rent  1,409.58  1,133.26 

Common establishment expenses  631.15  618.32 

Advisory referral fees  5,395.12  3,265.41 

Advertisement, marketing and business promotion  758.05  2,370.11 

Rates and taxes  21.75  109.17 

Repairs and maintenance  1,803.79  1,114.14 

Travelling and conveyance  436.01  356.57 

Membership, subscription and conference  537.64  407.00 

Payment to auditors

	 As Statutory Audit Fees  42.00  42.40 

	 Others  1.43  0.62 

Legal, professional and consultancy charges  738.57  1,098.22 

Directors remuneration  1.15  -   

Insurance  177.24  73.32 

Stamping expense  17.27  9.43 

Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (Refer note 39)  86.00  61.50 

Office expenses  546.70  435.06 

Other expenses  93.93  57.77 

Total  12,697.38  11,152.30 

Note 36: TAX EXPENSE

(a)	 Amounts recognised in profit and loss
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Current tax expense

Current period  2,013.13  1,332.79 

Changes in estimates related to prior years  (92.22)  84.80 

Total current tax expense  (A)  1,920.91  1,417.59 

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  1,033.57  (441.92)

Deferred tax expense  (B)  1,033.57  (441.92)

Tax expense / (benefit) for the year  (A)+(B)  2,954.48  975.67 

(b)	 Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax effect of remeasurements of defined benefit liability (asset)  (3.48)  (20.79)

Total  (3.48)  (20.79)
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(c)	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate
(` in lakh) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Profit before tax  14,539.36  5,227.72 
Company’s domestic tax rate (%)  25.168  25.168 
Tax at the domestic tax rate  3,659.27  1,315.71 
Tax effect of:
Tax impact of income from investments in VCF / AIF /others  (777.15)  (439.57)
Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible for taxable income  164.59  14.73 
Changes in estimates related to prior years  (92.22)  84.80 
Total income tax expenses / (benefit)  2,954.48  975.67 

(d)	 Movement in deferred tax balances
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 2024

Net opening 
balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Net
Deferred tax 

 asset
Deferred tax 

liability

Deferred tax asset / (liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment  (9.69)  29.83  20.14  20.14  -
Provision for compensated absences  23.64  1.98  25.62  25.62  -
Stock Appreciation Rights scheme and other benefits  199.10  (72.55)  126.55  126.55  -
Investments  (3,353.19)  (1,224.00)  (4,577.19)  -  4,577.19
Income from VCFs / AIFs  693.17  284.52  977.69  977.69  -
Employee benefits  208.97  (34.05)  174.92  174.92  -
Contract cost  (127.32)  (37.47)  (164.79)  -  164.79
Effective interest rate adjustment  (7.73)  1.75  (5.98)  -  5.98
Impairment loss allowance  9.60  (1.69)  7.91  7.91  -
Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary 
differences

 (18.12)  18.12  -  -  -

Total  (2,381.57)  (1,033.57)  (3,415.13)  1,332.83  4,747.96

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

 As at 31st March, 2023

Net opening 
balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Net
Deferred tax 

 asset
Deferred tax 

liability

Deferred tax asset / (liabilities)

Property, plant and equipment  45.70  (55.39)  (9.69)  -    9.69 

Provision for compensated absences  68.25  (44.61)  23.64  23.64  -   

Stock Appreciation Rights scheme  85.48  113.62  199.10  199.10  -   

Investments  (3,450.87)  97.68  (3,353.19)  -    3,353.19 

Income from VCFs / AIFs  334.44  358.73  693.17  693.17  -   

Employee benefits  192.05  16.92  208.97  208.97  -   

Contract cost  (88.45)  (38.87)  (127.32)  -    127.32 

Effective interest rate adjustment  -    (7.73)  (7.73)  -    7.73 

Impairment loss allowance  12.84  (3.24)  9.60  9.60  -   

Recognition of previously unrecognised temporary 
differences

 (22.92)  4.80  (18.12)  -    18.12 

Total  (2,823.48)  441.91  (2,381.57)  1,134.48  3,516.05 
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The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities and recoverability of 
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income in which the relevant entity operates 
and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

Note 37: EARNING PER SHARE

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares.

(` in lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
 As at  

31st March, 2023

A) Profit attributable to equity shareholders  11,584.88  4,252.05 
B) Weighted/ Basic number of equity shares outstanding during the year  8,968,864  8,968,864 
C) Face value per share (₹)  10.00  10.00 
D) Basic and Diluted earnings per share (₹)  129.17  47.41 

Note 38: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(` in lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
 As at  

31st March, 2023

(a) Contingent liabilities: 
Bank Guarantees given for

(i) Expression of Interest in resolution plan of Patna Baktiyarpur Tollway Limited  50.00  -   
(ii) Expression of Interest in resolution plan of Rajesh Business and Leisure Hotel Private Limited  -    5.00 

Total  50.00  5.00 
(b) Tax demand
(i) Service tax demand  52.62  45.56 

 52.62  45.56 
(c) Commitments:

The Company is contingently liable in respect of future investment commitment to
(i) Kotak India Growth Fund II  180.00  180.00 
(ii) Kotak Pre-IPO Oppurtunities Fund  1,278.90  2,984.10 
(iii) LICHFL Urban Development Fund  22.80  22.80 
(iv) Kotak India Real Estate Fund VIII  1,680.63  1,684.33 
(v) Kotak India Affordable Housing Fund I  2,115.04  2,118.49 
(vi) India Office Assets Fund I  8,817.43  9,166.92 
(vii) Kotak Special Situations Fund  60.00  85.28 
(viii) Kotak Performing RE Credit Strategy Fund  1,043.58  2,781.36 
(ix) Kotak Performing RE Credit Strategy Fund – I  26,681.43  26,683.33 
(x) Kotak Infrastructure Investment Fund  49,878.12  50,601.49 
(xi) Kotak Real Estate Fund X  11,539.37  15,570.10 
(xii) Kotak Real Estate Fund X - IFSC  286.44  -   
(xiii) Kotak Private Credit Fund  3,736.43  950.00 
(xiv) Kotak Special Strategic Situations Fund II IFSC  483.12  615.00 
(xv) Kotak Strategic Situations Fund II  31,192.09  18,900.00 
(xvi) Kotak Data Centre Fund IFSC  548.49  -   
(xvii) Kotak Data Centre Fund  13,483.17  562.50 

Total  153,027.04  132,905.70 
Total Contingent Liabilities and Commitments  153,129.66  132,956.26 
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Note 39: CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Details of CSR expenditure

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in cash Total

Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2024:
Construction/ acquisition of any asset  -  -  -
On purposes other than above  6.54  -  6.54
Total  6.54  -  6.54
Amount spent during the year ending on 31st March, 2023:
Construction/acquisition of any asset  -  -  -
On purposes other than above  9.50  -  9.50
Total  9.50  -  9.50

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Amount of expenditure incurred:
Contribution to Kotak Education Foundation  -  4.00
Contribution to CEQUE  -  5.50
Contribution to Entrepreneurship Development Centre  5.00  -
Others  1.54*  -
Accural towards unspent obligations (Shortfall) in relation to:
Ongoing project  79.46  52.00
Other than ongoing project  -  -
Total  86.00  61.50
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act  86.00  61.50
Amount of cumulative unspent at the end of the year  83.88  52.00
Amount spent during the year on
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset  -  -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  6.54*  9.50

* includes administrative and overhead cost of ₹ 1.54 Lakh

Nature of CSR activities and reason for shortfall

The Company has collaborated with implementing organisation “Entrepreneurship Development Centre” for undertaking CSR Project in the focus area 
of Healthcare for FY 2023-24. The project aims to accelerate a cohort of deep science and technology based early stage start ups ( with potential social 
impact) through an Investment Readiness Accelerator programme aimed at connecting, mentoring and enabling them to enhance their fund raising effort. 
The accelerator program commenced in Jan 2024 and 12 healthcare statrups have been selected for the program. The accelerator program will continue 
in FY’25.

Details of ongoing CSR projects under Section 135(6) of the Act
(₹ in lakh)

Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Amount required to be 
spent during the year 

Amount spent during the year Balance as at 31st March, 2024

With the 
Company 

In Separate CSR 
Unspent account

From the Company’s 
Bank account 

From Separate CSR 
Unspent account

With Company 
In Separate CSR 

Unspent account

 52.00  -  86.00  5.00#  49.12  81.00^  2.88

^ ₹ 81 lakh, as the unspent amount has been transferred to the Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited - Unspent CSR Account FY 2023-24 on 24th April, 2024 in compliance with 

Section 135 of the Act against ₹ 79.46 lakh as was required to be transferred.

# ₹1.54 lakh expenses also been spent towards administrative and overhead cost.
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(₹ in lakh)

Balance as at 1st April, 2022
Amount required to be 
spent during the year 

Amount spent during the year Balance as at 31st March, 2023

With the 
Company 

In Separate CSR 
Unspent account

From the Company’s 
Bank account

From Separate CSR 
Unspent account

With Company
In Separate CSR 

Unspent account

 2.14  -    61.50  9.50  2.14  52.00 @  -   

@ ₹ 52 lakh, as the unspent amount has been transferred to the Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited - Unspent CSR Account FY 2022-23 on 24th April, 2023 in compliance with 

Section 135 of the Act

Details of CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of other than ongoing projects:
(₹ in lakh)

Balance unspent  
as at 1st April, 2023

Amount deposited in Specified Fund of Schedule VII of 
the Act within 6 months

Amount required to be 
spent during the year

Amount spent 
during the year

Balance unspent  
as at 31st March, 2024

 -  -  -  -  -

Details of excess CSR expenditure under Section 135(5) of the Act:
(₹ in lakh)

Balance excess spent  
as at 1st April, 2023

Amount required to be spent during the year Amount spent during the year
Balance excess spent 

as at 31st March, 2024

 -  86.00  87.54  (1.54)

Note 40: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 	

Related party disclosures are given below:

A. Names of Related Parties
(` in lakh)

Sr. 
No. Particulars  Country of 

Incorporation 
 Proportion of 

ownership interest 

a) Holding company: 
Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  India 
2024 58.63%
2023 58.63%
Mr. Uday S. Kotak along with persons/entities forming part of the Promoter Group, holds 25.90% of 
the paid-up share capital of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited as on 31st March, 2024

b) Entity exercising significant influence over the company
Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited  India 

c) Fellow subsidiaries with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited
Kotak Mahindra (International) Limited
Kotak Mahindra Asset Management (Singapore) Pte. Limited
Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited
Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Limited (Kotak Life)
Kotak Mahindra Trusteeship Services Limited
Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited
Kotak Securities Limited
Kotak Investment Asset Management Company Limited
Kotak Mahindra Investments Limited

d) Entity controlled or jointly controlled by relatives of individual having significant influence over 
the Company (Entity having significant influence)
Aero Agencies Limited  India 

e) Associates
Kotak Infrastructure Debt Fund Limited  India 
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f) Key Management Personnel/Director
Mr. Dipak Gupta, Director *
Mr. Jaimin Bhatt, Director
Mr. Gaurang Shah, Director 
Ms. Oisharya Das, Director *
Ms. Shanti Ekambaram, Director * (Resigned w.e.f. 19th May, 2023)
Mr. Rajeev Saptarshi, Whole Time Director 
Mr. Sriniwasan Subramanian, Managing Director
Ms. Lakshmi Iyer, Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 19th May, 2023)
Mr. Devang Salian, Company Secretary 
* No transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023

g) Key Management Personnel and their relatives/Director of holding company and their entity
KF Trust (Formerly known as USK Benefit Trust - II)
Mr.Uday Shankar
Mr. C Jayaram
Uday Shankar
Amit K Desai HUF
R Manian Trust
K V Subramanian
Ishita Bhatt
Jay Uday Kotak
Pallavi Uday Kotak
Laburnum Adarsh Trust

B.	 Transactions with related parties

	 i.	 Key management personnel / Director compensation*
(` in lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

i. Short-term employee benefits  1,100.38  810.49 

	 	 * The above figures do not include provisions for gratuity and compensated absences, as separate actuarial valuations are not available.

	 ii.	� Transactions with Key management personnel / Key management personnel of the holding company and their entity
(` in lakh) 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
 As at  

31st March, 2023

i. Advisory Fees  138.28  131.01 
ii. Sale of bonds/ debentures  -    7.74 
iii. Trade Receivables  11.18  20.05 
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Note 41: LEASE DISCLOSURES

Operating Lease as Lessee:

The Company has taken office premises under operating lease whose period is 12 months and cancellable and renewable at the option of the Company or 
lessor. The Company has used practical expedients while applying Ind AS 116 to leases which are expiring within 12 months from the date of transition by 
class of assets and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value on a lease-by-lease basis.

Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Rent payment for sharing of premises recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss in Note no. 35 - Other 
expenses

 1,409.58  1,133.26 

Total  1,409.58  1,133.26 

Note 42: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)	 Defined Contribution Plans:	

	 The Company has recognized the following amounts in the Standalone Statement of profit and loss towards contributions to Provident Fund and 
Other Funds.

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2024
 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

Provident Fund  598.33  469.90 

New Pension Fund  68.61  67.18 

Total  666.94  537.08 

(ii)	 Defined Benefit Plan:												          

	G ratuity								      

	 Based on the actuarial valuation, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial 
statements as at balance sheet date:

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (A)  737.48  597.43 

Fair value of plan assets (B)  (812.27)  (387.21)

Net (asset) / liability recognised in the Balance Sheet (A+B)  (74.79)  210.22 
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A.	 Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/liability

	 The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) / liability and its 
components:

Particular

 Defined benefit obligation  Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit (asset) / liability 

 As at  
31st March, 2024

 As at  
31st March, 2023

 As at  
31st March, 2024

 As at  
31st March, 2023

 As at  
31st March, 2024

 As at  
31st March, 2023

Opening balance  597.43  526.11  387.21  498.17  210.22  27.94

Included in profit or loss

Current service cost  135.60  92.81  -  -  135.60  92.81

Past service cost  -  -  -  -  -  -

Interest on defined benefit obligation  36.77  32.17  29.27  33.65  7.50  (1.48)

Total  769.80  651.09  416.48  531.82  353.32  119.27

Included in OCI

Remeasurement loss (gain)  -  -  -  -  -  -

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from:

	 Demographic assumptions  -  27.36  -  -  -  27.36

	 Financial assumptions  4.08  (15.45)  -  -  4.08  (15.45)

	 Experience adjustment  91.53  29.21  -  -  91.53  29.21

Actual return on plan assets less interest 
on plan assets 

 -  -  81.84  (41.50)  (81.84)  41.50

Total  95.61  41.12  81.84  (41.50)  13.77  82.62

Other

Contributions paid by the employer  -  -  433.91  32.62  (433.91)  (32.62)

Liabilities assumed / (settled)  (7.97)  40.95  -  -  (7.97)  40.95

Benefits paid  (119.96)  (135.73)  (119.96)  (135.73)  -  -

Closing balance  737.48  597.43  812.27  387.21  (74.79)  210.21

Represented by

Net defined benefit liability / (assets)  (74.79)  210.21

B.	  Plan assets

	 Plan assets comprise the following:

(₹ in lakh)

Category
 As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023

(%) Amount (%) Amount

Equity  -  -  12.49 48.38

Government securities  -  -  28.71 111.17

Corporate Debt  -  -  36.47 141.22

Money market instruments  -  -  22.33 86.45

Others  100.00  812.27  -  -

 100.00  812.27   100.00  387.22
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C.	  Defined benefit obligations

i.	 Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars  As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023

Discount rate 7.15% p.a 7.30% p.a

Salary escalation rate 7.00% p.a 7.00% p.a

Mortality rate Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
(2012-14)

Assumptions regarding future mortality have been based on published statistics and mortality tables.

ii.	S ensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected 
the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(₹ in lakh)

Category
 As at 31st March, 2024  As at 31st March, 2023

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

Discount rate (50 bps movement)  724.08  751.51  (12.24)  12.82 

Salary Escalation Rate (50 bps movement)  744.56  730.43  6.02  (5.93)

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market 
conditions at the accounting date. Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide 
an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

iii.	 Risk Exposure

The plan assets are invested 100% in Kotak Group Balanced Fund – an insurer managed fund. Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed 
to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with references to government bond yields; if plan assets underperform compared to this yield, 
this will create or increase a deficit. The defined benefit plans may hold equity type assets, which may carry volatility and associated risk.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans’ bond holdings.

Inflation risk

The present value of some of the defined benefit plan obligations are calculated with reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an 
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability. The post retirement medical benefit obligation is sensitive to medical inflation 
and accordingly, an increase in medical inflation rate would increase the plan’s liability.

Salary Risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary of the 
plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

D.	Exp ected Future Cash Flows

(i)	E xpected contribution

There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre fund the liability of the Plan. The Company’s philosophy is to fund the benefits based on its 
own liquidity and tax position as well as level of under funding of the plan.
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The expected contribution payable to the plan next year is NIL, as the fair value of planned asset is higher than present value of defined benefit obligation 
as at 31st March, 2024.

(ii)	 Expected future benefit payments:

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the 
employees as at the valuation date:

(₹ in lakh)

Maturity Profile

Expected benefits for Year 1  280.18 

Expected benefits for Year 2  115.87 

Expected benefits for Year 3  101.18 

Expected benefits for Year 4  82.56 

Expected benefits for Year 5  66.88 

Expected benefits for Year 6  39.33 

Expected benefits for Year 7  32.75 

Expected benefits for Year 8  27.75 

Expected benefits for Year 9  38.97 

Expected benefits for Year 10 and above  240.29 

 1,025.76 

(iii)	 Compensated absences:

The actuarially determined liability for compensated absences of accumulated leaves of the employees of the Company is given below:

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Total actuarial liability  101.79 93.97

Assumptions : 

Discount rate 7.15% 7.30%

Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
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Note 43: SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS:

A.	 Description of share-based payment arrangements

i.	E quity Stock Options Schemes (equity-settled)

The shareholders of the Bank had passed Special Resolutions in the General meeting dated 29th June, 2015, to grant options to the eligible employees of 
the Bank and its subsidiaries and associate companies. Pursuant to this resolution, the Kotak Mahindra Equity Option Scheme 2015 has been formulated 
and adopted.

Consequent to the above, the Bank has granted stock options to employees of the Company.

As at 31st March, 2024

Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting  No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs)

ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 Equity settled  6,826 31st December, 2023 4.09
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 Equity settled  5,040 31st December, 2023 3.90
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 Equity settled  5,897 30th June, 2024 3.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 Equity settled  5,909 30th June, 2025 4.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 Equity settled  2,250 30th June, 2024 3.54
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 Equity settled  2,250 30th June, 2025 4.54
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  6,588 31st May, 2024 2.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  6,588 31st May, 2025 3.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  6,586 31st May, 2026 4.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2023 1.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2024 2.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2025 3.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,656 31st October, 2026 4.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 Equity settled  3,101 30th June, 2024 1.67
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 Equity settled  3,101 30th June, 2025 2.67
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 Equity settled  3,101 30th June, 2026 3.67
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 Equity settled  3,097 30th June, 2027 4.67

 66,964

As at 31st March, 2023

Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting  No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs)

ESOPSCHEME2015SR19 20th May, 2019 Equity settled  14,968 31st December, 2022 4.12
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 Equity settled  6,826 30th June, 2023 3.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 Equity settled  6,826 31st December, 2023 4.09
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 Equity settled  7,271 30th November, 2022 2.81
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 Equity settled  10,416 30th June, 2023 3.40
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 Equity settled  10,416 31st December, 2023 3.90
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 Equity settled  9,238 30th June, 2023 2.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 Equity settled  9,238 30th June, 2024 3.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 Equity settled  9,256 30th June, 2025 4.59
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 Equity settled  2,250 30th June, 2023 2.54
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 Equity settled  2,250 30th June, 2024 3.54
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 Equity settled  2,250 30th June, 2025 4.54
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  9,771 31st May, 2023 1.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  9,771 31st May, 2024 2.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  9,771 31st May, 2025 3.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 Equity settled  9,767 31st May, 2026 4.56
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2023 1.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2024 2.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,658 31st October, 2025 3.53
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 Equity settled  1,656 31st October, 2026 4.53

 136,915 
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B.	 Measurement of fair values

i.	E quity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Service and non-market performance conditions 
attached to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value.

As at 31st March, 2024

Scheme  Grant Date Vesting 
period 

Exercise 
period 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Market 
Price 

(₹) 

Expected 
life 

(Years) 

Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Fair value 
per share 

options (₹)

ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 3.59  0.50  1,224  1,224  - 0.07% 28.91% 4.95%  338
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 3.40  0.50  1,341  1,340  - 0.06% 33.09% 4.40%  341
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 3.09  0.50  1,801  1,801  0.25 0.05% 35.50% 4.65%  464
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 4.09  0.50  1,801  1,801  1.25 0.05% 35.50% 4.65%  464
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 3.04  0.50  1,801  1,761  0.25 0.06% 36.85% 6.37%  482
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 4.04  0.50  1,801  1,761  1.25 0.06% 36.85% 6.37%  482
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 2.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  0.17 0.06% 27.72% 5.75%  269
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 3.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  1.17 0.06% 27.72% 5.75%  269
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 4.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  2.17 0.06% 27.72% 5.75%  269
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 1.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  - 0.06% 26.77% 7.01%  315
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 2.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  0.59 0.06% 26.77% 7.01%  315
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 3.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  1.59 0.06% 26.77% 7.01%  315
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 4.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  2.59 0.06% 26.77% 7.01%  315
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 1.16  0.50  1,939  1,938  0.25 0.08% 23.45% 7.05%  308
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 2.16  0.50  1,939  1,938  1.25 0.08% 24.79% 7.03%  447
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 3.16  0.50  1,939  1,938  2.25 0.08% 32.42% 7.10%  643
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023 4.16  0.50  1,939  1,938  3.25 0.08% 30.80% 7.14%  729

As at 31st March, 2023

Scheme  Grant Date Vesting 
period 

Exercise 
period 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Market 
Price 

(₹) 

Expected 
life 

(Years) 

Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Fair value 
per share 

options (₹)

ESOPSCHEME2015SR19 20th May, 2019 3.62  0.50  1,460  1,460  3.87 0.05% 31.00% 7.03%  508 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 3.08  0.50  1,224  1,224  3.34 0.07% 28.91% 4.95%  338 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020 3.59  0.50  1,224  1,224  3.84 0.07% 27.95% 5.19%  364 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 2.32  0.50  1,341  1,340  2.56 0.06% 33.09% 4.40%  341 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 2.90  0.50  1,341  1,340  3.15 0.06% 30.71% 4.85%  370 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020 3.40  0.50  1,341  1,340  3.65 0.06% 29.29% 5.06%  395 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 2.08  0.50  1,801  1,801  2.34 0.05% 35.50% 4.65%  464 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 3.09  0.50  1,801  1,801  3.34 0.05% 32.78% 5.13%  546 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021 4.09  0.50  1,801  1,801  4.34 0.05% 29.80% 5.53%  609 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 2.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  2.31 0.06% 36.85% 6.37%  482 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 3.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  3.31 0.06% 33.04% 7.05%  569 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021 4.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  4.31 0.06% 31.40% 7.26%  655 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 1.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  1.31 0.06% 27.72% 5.75%  269 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 2.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  2.31 0.06% 36.85% 6.37%  482 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 3.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  3.31 0.06% 33.04% 7.05%  569 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022 4.06  0.50  1,798  1,768  4.31 0.06% 31.40% 7.26%  655 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 1.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  1.28 0.06% 26.77% 7.01%  315 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 2.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  2.29 0.06% 26.75% 7.28%  463 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 3.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  3.29 0.06% 34.89% 7.37%  634 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022 4.04  0.50  1,834  1,858  4.29 0.06% 31.98% 7.52%  721 
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The following table lists the average inputs to the models used for the plans for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particular  Description of the inputs used

Expected volatility  
(weighted-average)

Expected volatility of the option is based on historical volatility, during a period equivalent to the option life, of the observed 
market prices of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited’s publicly traded equity shares.

Expected dividends Dividend yield of the options is based on recent dividend activity.

Risk-free interest rate  
(based on government bonds)

Risk-free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of the grant.

C. Reconciliation of outstanding share options

Activity in the options outstanding under the employee’s stock option Scheme are as follows:

Scheme reference  Grant date 
 Balance as 
at 1st April, 

2023 

 Granted 
during 

the year

 Exercised 
during the 

year

 Lapsed/ 
cancelled 

during 
the year

 Transfer In 
/ (Transfer 

Out) during 
the year*

 Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2024

 Exercisable 
as at 31st 

March, 2024

ESOPSCHEME2015SR19 20th May, 2019  14,968  -    (14,968)  -    -    -    -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020  13,652  -    (6,826)  -    -    6,826  6,826 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020  28,103  -    (21,267)  (2,228)  432  5,040  5,040 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021  27,732  -    (6,457)  (7,586)  (1,883)  11,806  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021  6,750  -    (2,250)  -    -    4,500  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022  39,080  -    (860)  (16,538)  (1,920)  19,762  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022  6,630  -    -    -    -    6,630  1,658 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 2nd May, 2023  -    17,980  -    (3,100)  (2,480)  12,400  -   

 136,915  17,980  (52,628)  (29,452)  (5,851)  66,964  13,524 

Scheme reference Grant date 
Balance as 
at 1st April, 

2022 

 Granted 
during 

the year

 Exercised 
during the 

year

 Lapsed/ 
cancelled 

during 
the year

 Transfer In 
/ (Transfer 

Out) during 
the year*

Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2023 

 Exercisable 
as at 31st 

March, 2023 

ESOPSCHEME2015SR14 18th May, 2018  15,430  -    (10,352)  -    (5,078)  -    -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR18 27th December, 2018  10,029  -    (10,029)  -    -    -    -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR19 20th May, 2019  41,481  -    (31,486)  (1,284)  6,257  14,968  14,968 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 30th May, 2020  23,891  -    (10,239)  -    -    13,652  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 7th August, 2020  25,340  -    (8,633)  (644)  12,040  28,103  7,271 
ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 30th May, 2021  40,950  -    (7,808)  (3,303)  (2,107)  27,732  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    (2,250)  9,000  6,750  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 10th May, 2022  -    27,700  -    -    11,380  39,080  -   
ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 18th October, 2022  -    6,630  -    -    -    6,630  -   

 157,121  34,330  (78,547)  (7,481)  31,492  136,915  22,239 

*This represents transfer of employees within Bank and its subsidiaries

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for stock options exercised during the year was ₹ 1,735.50 (Previous year: ₹ 1,765.29).
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The details of exercise price for stock options outstanding at the end of the year are:

ESOP Scheme
Range of 
exercise 

prices (₹)

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

 Number 
of options 

outstanding 

 Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life of 
options (in years) 

Weighted 
average 
exercise 
price (₹) 

 Number 
of options 

outstanding 

 Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life of 
options (in years) 

Weighted 
average 
exercise 
price (₹)

ESOPSCHEME2015SR19 1401-1500  -  -  -  14,968  0.25  1,460

ESOPSCHEME2015SR23 1201-1300  6,826  -  1,224  13,652  1.00  1,224

ESOPSCHEME2015SR25 1301-1400  5,040  -  1,341  28,103  0.78  1,341

ESOPSCHEME2015SR30 1801-1900  11,806  0.75  1,801  27,732  1.75  1,801

ESOPSCHEME2015SR33 1801-1900  4,500  0.75  1,801  6,750  1.75  1,801

ESOPSCHEME2015SR34 1701-1800  19,762  1.17  1,798  39,080  2.17  1,798

ESOPSCHEME2015SR39 1801-1900  6,630  1.19  1,834  6,630  2.58  1,834

ESOPSCHEME2015SR40 1901-2000  12,400  1.75  1,939  -  - -

 66,964  136,915

ii.	S tock appreciation rights (cash-settled)

During the year, the management had approved SARs to be granted to eligible employees as and when deemed fit. The SARs are to be settled in cash and 
will vest in the manner as provided in the scheme / grant letters to employees. The Company under its various plans / series has granted 17,910 SARs 
during FY 2023- 24. The contractual life (which is equivalent to the vesting period) of the SARs outstanding ranges from 1.16 years to 4.20 years.

As at 31st March, 2024

Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting   No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs) 

Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  794 31st August, 2024  4.07 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  794 7th September, 2024  4.09 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  800 14th September, 2024  4.11 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V3-1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  525 30th June, 2024  3.09 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V3-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  525 7th July, 2024  3.11 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V3-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  539 14th July, 2024  3.13 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V4-1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  529 30th June, 2025  4.09 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V4-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  529 7th July, 2025  4.11 
Scheme 2015 – Series 32 -V4-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  545 14th July, 2025  4.13 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V3-1 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 30th June, 2024  3.04 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V3-2 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 7th July, 2024  3.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V3-3 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 14th July, 2024  3.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V4-1 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 30th June, 2025  4.04 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V4-2 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 7th July, 2025  4.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 35 -V4-3 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  326 14th July, 2025  4.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V2-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,088 31st May, 2024  2.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V2-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,088 7th June, 2024  2.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V2-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,089 14th June, 2024  2.10 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V3-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,088 31st May, 2025  3.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V3-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,088 7th June, 2025  3.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V3-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,089 14th June, 2025  3.10 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V4-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,082 31st May, 2026  4.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V4-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,082 7th June, 2026  4.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 40 -V4-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,081 14th June, 2026  4.10 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V2-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2024  2.04 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V2-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2024  2.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V2-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2024  2.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V3-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2025  3.04 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V3-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2025  3.06 
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Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting   No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs) 

Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V3-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2025  3.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V4-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2026  4.04 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V4-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2026  4.06 
Scheme 2015 – Series 51 -V4-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2026  4.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V1-1 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 30th June, 2024  1.16 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V1-2 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 7th July, 2024  1.18 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V1-3 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,490 14th July, 2024  1.20 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V2-1 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 30th June, 2025  2.16 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V2-2 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 7th July, 2025  2.18 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V2-3 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,490 14th July, 2025  2.20 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V3-1 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 30th June, 2026  3.16 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V3-2 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,496 7th July, 2026  3.18 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V3-3 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,490 14th July, 2026  3.20 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V4-1 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,490 30th June, 2027  4.16 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V4-2 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,490 7th July, 2027  4.18 
Scheme 2015 – Series 55 -V4-3 2nd May, 2023 Cash settled  1,484 14th July, 2027  4.20 

 45,741 

As at 31st March, 2023

Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting   No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs) 

Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-1 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   30th June, 2022  3.12 
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-2 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   7th July, 2022  3.13 
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-3 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   14th July, 2022  3.15 
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-1 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   31st December, 2022  3.62 
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-2 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   7th January, 2023  3.64 
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-3 20th May, 2019 Cash settled  -   14th January, 2023  3.66 
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-1 27th December, 2018 Cash settled  -   31st July, 2022  3.59 
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-2 27th December, 2018 Cash settled  -   7th August, 2022  3.61 
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-3 27th December, 2018 Cash settled  -   14th August, 2022  3.63 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  -   30th November, 2022  2.32 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  -   7th December, 2022  2.33 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  -   14th December, 2022  2.35 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  914 30th June, 2023  2.90 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  929 7th July, 2023  2.92 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  927 14th July, 2023  2.93 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  914 31st December, 2023  3.40 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  929 7th January, 2024  3.42 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  927 14th January, 2024  3.44 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,566 31st August, 2023  3.07 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,566 7th September, 2023  3.08 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,566 14th September, 2023  3.10 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,041 31st August, 2024  4.07 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,041 7th September, 2024  4.09 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020 Cash settled  1,050 14th September, 2024  4.11 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1 -1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  -   30th June, 2022  1.08 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  -   7th July, 2022  1.10 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  -   14th July, 2022  1.12 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  826 30th June, 2023  2.08 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  826 7th July, 2023  2.10 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  842 14th July, 2023  2.12 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  826 30th June, 2024  3.09 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  826 7th July, 2024  3.11 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  842 14th July, 2024  3.13 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-1 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  829 30th June, 2025  4.09 
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Scheme reference  Grant Date  Mode of settlement 
accounting   No. of Options  Vesting conditions/

dates 
 Contractual Life 

(In Yrs) 

Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-2 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  829 7th July, 2025  4.11 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-3 30th May, 2021 Cash settled  850 14th July, 2025  4.13 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v1-1 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,346 31st March, 2023  1.04 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-2 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,346 7th April, 2023  1.06 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-3 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,346 14th April, 2023  1.08 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V2-1 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,346 31st March, 2024  2.04 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v2-2 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,418 7th April, 2024  2.06 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v2-3 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,274 14th April, 2024  2.08 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-1 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,418 31st March, 2025  3.04 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-2 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,418 7th April, 2025  3.06 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-3 17th March, 2022 Cash settled  2,418 14th April, 2025  3.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 31st May, 2023  1.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 7th June, 2023  1.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,884 14th June, 2023  1.10 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 31st May, 2024  2.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 7th June, 2024  2.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,884 14th June, 2024  2.10 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 31st May, 2025  3.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,882 7th June, 2025  3.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,884 14th June, 2025  3.10 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-1 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,876 31st May, 2026  4.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-2 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,876 7th June, 2026  4.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-3 10th May, 2022 Cash settled  2,874 14th June, 2026  4.10 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2023  1.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2023  1.05 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2023  1.07 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2024  2.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2024  2.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2024  2.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2025  3.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2025  3.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2025  3.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-1 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 31st October, 2026  4.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-2 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  168 7th November, 2026  4.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-3 18th October, 2022 Cash settled  174 14th November, 2026  4.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-1 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 30th June, 2023  2.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-2 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 7th July, 2023  2.05 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-3 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 14th July, 2023  2.07 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-1 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 30th June, 2024  3.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-2 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 7th July, 2024  3.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-3 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 14th July, 2024  3.08 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-1 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 30th June, 2025  4.04 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-2 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  324 7th July, 2025  4.06 
 Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-3 17th June, 2021 Cash settled  326 14th July, 2025  4.08 

 81,724 



79 Financial Statements

Notes

Kotak Alternate Asset Managers Limited 

Notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

The fair values were calculated using a Black-Scholes Model. The inputs were as follows:

As at 31st March, 2024

Scheme  Grant Date Vesting period 
Expected 

life 
(Years) 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Weighted 
average 

share price 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Fair 
value per 
SARs (₹) 

Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020 31st August, 2024  0.42  -    1,786 7.11% 0.08% 17.44%  1,785 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020 7th September, 2024  0.44  -    1,786 7.13% 0.08% 17.79%  1,785 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020 14th September, 2024  0.46  -    1,786 7.14% 0.08% 17.64%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2024  0.25  -    1,785 7.02% 0.08% 19.24%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2025  1.25  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.40%  1,784 
2015-35(V3-1) 17th June, 2021 30th June, 2024  0.25  -    1,785 7.02% 0.08% 19.24%  1,785 
2015-35(V3-2) 17th June, 2021 7th July, 2024  0.27  -    1,785 7.03% 0.08% 19.19%  1,785 
2015-35(V3-3) 17th June, 2021 14th July, 2024  0.29  -    1,785 7.04% 0.08% 18.84%  1,785 
2015-35(V4-1) 17th June, 2021 30th June, 2025  1.25  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.40%  1,784 
2015-35(V4-2) 17th June, 2021 7th July, 2025  1.27  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.35%  1,784 
2015-35(V4-3) 17th June, 2021 14th July, 2025  1.29  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.28%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2024  0.17  -    1,785 6.97% 0.08% 18.90%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2024  0.19  -    1,785 6.98% 0.08% 19.31%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2024  0.21  -    1,785 7.00% 0.08% 20.32%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2025  1.17  -    1,784 7.08% 0.08% 17.63%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2025  1.19  -    1,784 7.08% 0.08% 17.59%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2025  1.21  -    1,784 7.08% 0.08% 17.54%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2026  2.17  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 20.86%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2026  2.19  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 20.94%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2026  2.21  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 20.91%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 18th October, 2022 31st October, 2024  0.59  -    1,783 7.17% 0.08% 16.94%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-1 May 2, 2023 30th June, 2024  0.25  -    1,785 7.02% 0.08% 19.24%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-2 May 2, 2023 7th July, 2024  0.27  -    1,785 7.03% 0.08% 19.19%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-3 May 2, 2023 14th July, 2024  0.29  -    1,785 7.04% 0.08% 18.84%  1,785 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-1 May 2, 2023 30th June, 2025  1.25  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.40%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-2 May 2, 2023 7th July, 2025  1.27  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.35%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-3 May 2, 2023 14th July, 2025  1.29  -    1,784 7.07% 0.08% 17.28%  1,784 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-1 May 2, 2023 30th June, 2026  2.25  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 21.05%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-2 May 2, 2023 7th July, 2026  2.27  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 21.03%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-3 May 2, 2023 14th July, 2026  2.29  -    1,782 7.14% 0.08% 21.22%  1,782 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-1 May 2, 2023 30th June, 2027  3.25  -    1,781 7.18% 0.08% 22.98%  1,781 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-2 May 2, 2023 7th July, 2027  3.27  -    1,781 7.18% 0.08% 22.98%  1,781 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-3 May 2, 2023 14th July, 2027  3.29  -    1,781 7.18% 0.08% 22.92%  1,781 

As at 31st March, 2023

Scheme  Grant Date Vesting period 
Expected 

life 
(Years) 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Weighted 
average 

share price 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Fair 
value per 
SARs (₹) 

Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-1 7th August, 2020 30th June, 2023  0.25  -    1,721 7.00% 0.06% 16.01%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-2 7th August, 2020 7th July, 2023  0.27  -    1,721 7.02% 0.06% 15.86%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-3 7th August, 2020 14th July, 2023  0.29  -    1,721 7.03% 0.06% 15.63%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-1 7th August, 2020 31st December, 2023  0.75  -    1,721 7.32% 0.06% 19.31%  1,720 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-2 7th August, 2020 7th January, 2024  0.77  -    1,721 7.32% 0.06% 19.13%  1,720 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-3 7th August, 2020 14th January, 2024  0.79  -    1,721 7.31% 0.06% 19.61%  1,720 
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Scheme  Grant Date Vesting period 
Expected 

life 
(Years) 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Weighted 
average 

share price 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Fair 
value per 
SARs (₹) 

Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-1 7th August, 2020 31st August, 2023  0.42  -    1,721 7.16% 0.06% 15.02%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-2 7th August, 2020 7th September, 2023  0.44  -    1,721 7.17% 0.06% 15.59%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-3 7th August, 2020 14th September, 2023  0.46  -    1,721 7.19% 0.06% 15.66%  1,721 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020 31st August, 2024  1.42  -    1,721 7.21% 0.06% 24.38%  1,719 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020 7th September, 2024  1.44  -    1,721 7.20% 0.06% 24.82%  1,719 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020 14th September, 2024  1.46  -    1,721 7.20% 0.06% 24.71%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1 -1 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2022  0.25  -    1,763 3.97% 0.05% 31.46%  1,779 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-2 30th May, 2021 7th July, 2022  0.27  -    1,763 3.99% 0.05% 30.70%  1,779 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-3 30th May, 2021 14th July, 2022  0.29  -    1,763 4.00% 0.05% 30.99%  1,779 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-1 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2022  0.25  -    1,721 7.00% 0.06% 16.01%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-2 30th May, 2021 7th July, 2022  0.27  -    1,721 7.02% 0.06% 15.86%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-3 30th May, 2021 14th July, 2022  0.29  -    1,721 7.03% 0.06% 15.63%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-1 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2023  1.25  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 23.35%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-2 30th May, 2021 7th July, 2023  1.27  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 23.39%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-3 30th May, 2021 14th July, 2023  1.29  -    1,721 7.23% 0.06% 23.54%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-1 30th May, 2021 30th June, 2024  2.25  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 24.95%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-2 30th May, 2021 7th July, 2024  2.27  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 24.93%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-3 30th May, 2021 14th July, 2024  2.29  -    1,721 7.27% 0.06% 24.84%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-1 17th March, 2022 31st March, 2023  -    -    1,721 6.77% 0.06% 0.00%  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-2 17th March, 2022 7th April, 2023  0.02  -    1,721 6.79% 0.06% 15.98%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-3 17th March, 2022 14th April, 2023  0.04  -    1,721 6.81% 0.06% 14.24%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V2-1 17th March, 2022 31st March, 2024  1.00  -    1,721 7.29% 0.06% 20.90%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V2-2 17th March, 2022 7th April, 2024  1.02  -    1,721 7.29% 0.06% 21.24%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V2-3 17th March, 2022 14th April, 2024  1.04  -    1,721 7.28% 0.06% 21.65%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V3-1 17th March, 2022 31st March, 2025  2.00  -    1,721 7.19% 0.06% 24.23%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V3-2 17th March, 2022 7th April, 2025  2.02  -    1,721 7.20% 0.06% 24.16%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V3-3 17th March, 2022 14th April, 2025  2.04  -    1,721 7.20% 0.06% 24.13%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2023  0.17  -    1,721 6.92% 0.06% 17.07%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2023  0.19  -    1,721 6.94% 0.06% 16.88%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2023  0.21  -    1,721 6.96% 0.06% 16.59%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2024  1.17  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 23.20%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2024  1.19  -    1,721 7.25% 0.06% 23.31%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2024  1.21  -    1,721 7.25% 0.06% 23.18%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2025  2.71  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 25.14%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2025  2.19  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 25.14%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2025  2.21  -    1,721 7.25% 0.06% 25.09%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-1 10th May, 2022 31st May, 2026  3.17  -    1,721 7.29% 0.06% 33.11%  1,718 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-2 10th May, 2022 7th June, 2026  3.19  -    1,721 7.29% 0.06% 33.18%  1,718 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-3 10th May, 2022 14th June, 2026  3.21  -    1,721 7.29% 0.06% 33.10%  1,718 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-1 18th October, 2022 31st October, 2023  0.59  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 17.38%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-2 18th October, 2022 7th November, 2023  0.61  -    1,721 7.27% 0.06% 17.63%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-3 18th October, 2022 14th November, 2023  0.62  -    1,721 7.27% 0.06% 18.06%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-1 18th October, 2022 31st October, 2024  1.59  -    1,721 7.18% 0.06% 24.63%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-2 18th October, 2022 7th November, 2024  1.61  -    1,721 7.18% 0.06% 24.61%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-3 18th October, 2022 14th November, 2024  1.63  -    1,721 7.18% 0.06% 24.52%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-1 18th October, 2022 31st October, 2025  2.59  -    1,721 7.31% 0.06% 26.30%  1,718 
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Scheme  Grant Date Vesting period 
Expected 

life 
(Years) 

Exercise 
Price 

(₹) 

Weighted 
average 

share price 

 Risk 
free 
rate 

 Annual 
Dividend 

yield 
Volatility 

 Fair 
value per 
SARs (₹) 

Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-2 18th October, 2022 7th November, 2025  2.61  -    1,721 7.31% 0.06% 26.32%  1,718 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-3 18th October, 2022 14th November, 2025  2.63  -    1,721 7.32% 0.06% 26.37%  1,718 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-1 18th October, 2022 31st October, 2026  3.59  -    1,721 7.30% 0.06% 32.21%  1,717 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-2 18th October, 2022 7th November, 2026  3.61  -    1,721 7.30% 0.06% 32.18%  1,717 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-3 18th October, 2022 14th November, 2026  3.63  -    1,721 7.31% 0.06% 32.12%  1,717 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-1 17th June, 2021 30th June, 2023  0.25  -    1,721 7.00% 0.06% 16.01%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-2 17th June, 2021 7th July, 2023  0.27  -    1,721 7.02% 0.06% 15.86%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V2-3 17th June, 2021 14th July, 2023  0.29  -    1,721 7.03% 0.06% 15.63%  1,721 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-1 17th June, 2021 30th June, 2024  1.25  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 23.35%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-2 17th June, 2021 7th July, 2024  1.27  -    1,721 7.24% 0.06% 23.39%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V3-3 17th June, 2021 14th July, 2024  1.29  -    1,721 7.23% 0.06% 23.54%  1,720 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-1 17th June, 2021 30th June, 2025  2.25  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 24.97%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-2 17th June, 2021 7th July, 2025  2.27  -    1,721 7.26% 0.06% 24.93%  1,719 
Scheme 2015- Series 35 V4-3 17th June, 2021 14th July, 2025  2.29  -    1,721 7.27% 0.06% 24.84%  1,719 

The following table lists the average inputs to the models used for the plans for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

Particular  Description of the inputs used

Expected volatility  
(weighted-average)

Expected volatility of the option is based on historical volatility, during a period equivalent to the option life, of the observed 
market prices of Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited’s publicly traded equity shares.

Expected dividends Dividend yield of the options is based on recent dividend activity.

Risk-free interest rate  
(based on government bonds)

Risk-free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of the grant.

As at 31st March, 2024

Scheme reference  Grant Date 
Balance 
as at 1st 

April, 2023 

 Granted 
during 

the year 

 Exercised 
during the 

year 

 Lapsed/
cancelled 

during the year 

 Transfer in / 
(out)* during 

the year 

Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2024 

Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3 7th August, 2020  2,770  -    (2,812)  -    42  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4 7th August, 2020  2,770  -    (2,558)  (238)  26  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-1 7th August, 2020  1,566  -    (1,566)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-2 7th August, 2020  1,566  -    (1,566)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-3 7th August, 2020  1,566  -    (1,566)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020  1,041  -    -    (247)  -    794 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020  1,041  -    -    (247)  -    794 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020  1,050  -    -    (250)  -    800 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2 30th May, 2021  2,494  -    (2,531)  -    37  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3 30th May, 2021  2,494  -    -    (735)  (170)  1,589 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4 30th May, 2021  2,508  -    -    (735)  (170)  1,603 
2015-35(V2-1) 17th June, 2021  324  -    (324)  -    -    -   
2015-35(V2-2) 17th June, 2021  324  -    (324)  -    -    -   
2015-35(V2-3) 17th June, 2021  324  -    (324)  -    -    -   
2015-35(V3-1) 17th June, 2021  324  -    -    -    -    324 
2015-35(V3-2) 17th June, 2021  324  -    -    -    -    324 
2015-35(V3-3) 17th June, 2021  324  -    -    -    -    324 
2015-35(V4-1) 17th June, 2021  324  -    -    -    -    324 
2015-35(V4-2) 17th June, 2021  324  -    -    -    -    324 
2015-35(V4-3) 17th June, 2021  326  -    -    -    -    326 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 17th March, 2022  21,330  -    (7,038)  (12,389)  (1,903)  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 40 - V1-1 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    (2,963)  (12)  93  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 40 - V1-2 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    (2,963)  (12)  93  -   
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Scheme reference  Grant Date 
Balance 
as at 1st 

April, 2023 

 Granted 
during 

the year 

 Exercised 
during the 

year 

 Lapsed/
cancelled 

during the year 

 Transfer in / 
(out)* during 

the year 

Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2024 

Scheme 2015- Series 40 - V1-3 10th May, 2022  2,884  -    (2,965)  (11)  92  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-1 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    -    (590)  (204)  2,088 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-2 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    -    (590)  (204)  2,088 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V2-3 10th May, 2022  2,884  -    -    (591)  (204)  2,089 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-1 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    -    (590)  (204)  2,088 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-2 10th May, 2022  2,882  -    -    (590)  (204)  2,088 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V3-3 10th May, 2022  2,884  -    -    (591)  (204)  2,089 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-1 10th May, 2022  2,876  -    -    (589)  (205)  2,082 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-2 10th May, 2022  2,876  -    -    (589)  (205)  2,082 
Scheme 2015- Series 40-V4-3 10th May, 2022  2,874  -    -    (589)  (204)  2,081 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 18th October, 2022  2,040  -    (510)  -    -    1,530 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-1 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-2 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V1-3 2nd May, 2023  -    2,194  -    (426)  (278)  1,490 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-1 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-2 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V2-3 2nd May, 2023  -    2,194  -    (426)  (278)  1,490 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-1 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-2 2nd May, 2023  -    2,198  -    (424)  (278)  1,496 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V3-3 2nd May, 2023  -    2,194  -    (426)  (278)  1,490 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-1 2nd May, 2023  -    2,187  -    (422)  (275)  1,490 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-2 2nd May, 2023  -    2,187  -    (422)  (275)  1,490 
Scheme 2015- Series 55-V4-3 2nd May, 2023  -    2,186  -    (424)  (278)  1,484 

 81,724  26,330  (30,010)  (25,275)  (7,028)  45,741 

As at 31st March, 2023

Scheme reference  Grant Date 
Balance 
as at 1st 

April, 2022 

 Granted 
during 

the year 

 Exercised 
during the 

year 

Lapsed/
cancelled 

during the year 

 Transfer in / 
(out)* during 

the year 

Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2023 

Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V3-1 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V3-2 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V3-3 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V4-1 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V4-2 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 09 V4-3 15th May, 2017  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 17 V2-1 18th May, 2018  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 17 V2-2 18th May, 2018  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 17 V2-3 18th May, 2018  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-1 27th December, 2018  240  -    (240)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-2 27th December, 2018  240  -    (240)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 20 V4-3 27th December, 2018  241  -    (241)  -    -    -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-1 20th May, 2019  1,676  -    (1,616)  -    (60)  -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-2 20th May, 2019  1,678  -    (1,617)  -    (61)  -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V3-3 20th May, 2019  1,678  -    (1,617)  -    (61)  -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-1 20th May, 2019  1,676  -    (1,998)  (40)  362  -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-2 20th May, 2019  1,678  -    (1,999)  (40)  361  -   
Scheme 2015 - Series 22 V4-3 20th May, 2019  1,678  -    (1,999)  (40)  361  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-1 7th August, 2020  970  -    (1,416)  (3)  449  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-2 7th August, 2020  970  -    (1,416)  (3)  449  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V2-3 7th August, 2020  970  -    (1,416)  (3)  449  -   
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-1 7th August, 2020  641  -    -    (23)  296  914 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-2 7th August, 2020  651  -    -    (23)  301  929 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V3-3 7th August, 2020  648  -    -    (22)  301  927 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-1 7th August, 2020  641  -    -    (23)  296  914 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-2 7th August, 2020  651  -    -    (23)  301  929 
Scheme 2015 – Series 28 V4-3 7th August, 2020  648  -    -    (22)  301  927 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-1 7th August, 2020  372  -    -    -    1,194  1,566 
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Scheme reference  Grant Date 
Balance 
as at 1st 

April, 2022 

 Granted 
during 

the year 

 Exercised 
during the 

year 

Lapsed/
cancelled 

during the year 

 Transfer in / 
(out)* during 

the year 

Balance 
as at 31st 

March, 2023 

Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-2 7th August, 2020  372  -    -    -    1,194  1,566 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V1-3 7th August, 2020  372  -    -    -    1,194  1,566 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-1 7th August, 2020  247  -    -    -    794  1,041 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-2 7th August, 2020  247  -    -    -    794  1,041 
Scheme 2015 – Series 31 -V2-3 7th August, 2020  250  -    -    -    800  1,050 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1 -1 30th May, 2021  914  -    (820)  (94)  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-2 30th May, 2021  914  -    (820)  (94)  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V1-3 30th May, 2021  935  -    (838)  (97)  -   
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-1 30th May, 2021  914  -    -    (45)  (43)  826 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-2 30th May, 2021  914  -    -    (45)  (43)  826 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V2-3 30th May, 2021  935  -    -    (49)  (44)  842 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-1 30th May, 2021  914  -    -    (45)  (43)  826 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-2 30th May, 2021  914  -    -    (45)  (43)  826 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V3-3 30th May, 2021  935  -    -    (49)  (44)  842 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-1 30th May, 2021  919  -    -    (47)  (43)  829 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-2 30th May, 2021  919  -    -    (47)  (43)  829 
Scheme 2015- Series 32 V4-3 30th May, 2021  943  -    -    (49)  (44)  850 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v1-1 17th March, 2022  2,972  -    -    -    (626)  2,346 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-2 17th March, 2022  2,972  -    -    -    (626)  2,346 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V1-3 17th March, 2022  2,972  -    -    -    (626)  2,346 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 V2-1 17th March, 2022  2,972  -    -    -    (626)  2,346 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v2-2 17th March, 2022  3,063  -    -    -    (645)  2,418 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v2-3 17th March, 2022  2,881  -    -    -    (607)  2,274 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-1 17th March, 2022  3,063  -    -    -    (645)  2,418 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-2 17th March, 2022  3,063  -    -    -    (645)  2,418 
Scheme 2015- Series 38 v3-3 17th March, 2022  3,062  -    -    -    (644)  2,418 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-1 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-2 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V1-3 10th May, 2022  -    2,654  -    (268)  498  2,884 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-1 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-2 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V2-3 10th May, 2022  -    2,654  -    (268)  498  2,884 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-1 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-2 10th May, 2022  -    2,653  -    (270)  499  2,882 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V3-3 10th May, 2022  -    2,654  -    (268)  498  2,884 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-1 10th May, 2022  -    2,648  -    (269)  497  2,876 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-2 10th May, 2022  -    2,648  -    (269)  497  2,876 
Scheme 2015- Series 40 V4-3 10th May, 2022  -    2,644  -    (268)  498  2,874 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-1 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-2 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V1-3 18th October, 2022  -    174  -    -    -    174 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-1 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-2 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V2-3 18th October, 2022  -    174  -    -    -    174 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-1 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-2 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V3-3 18th October, 2022  -    174  -    -    -    174 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-1 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-2 18th October, 2022  -    168  -    -    -    168 
Scheme 2015- Series 51 V4-3 18th October, 2022  -    174  -    -    -    174 
2015-35(V2-1) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V2-2) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V2-3) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V3-1) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V3-2) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V3-3) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V4-1) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V4-2) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    324  324 
2015-35(V4-3) 17th June, 2021  -    -    -    -    326  326 

 57,525  33,860  (18,293)  (3,916)  12,548  81,724 
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Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and on the Balance Sheet:

Statement of profit and loss
(` in lakh) 

Scheme reference For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

Employee Stock Option Plan  57.58  196.02 

Stock Appreciation Rights  290.35  591.12 

Total  347.93  787.14 

Balance sheet
(` in lakh) 

Scheme reference As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

Contribution from parent  916.55  904.19 

SARs Liability  483.69 791.01

Intrinsic value of liability  483.71 791.08

Note 44: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

A.	 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below. It does not 
include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities whose carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Others* FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Others*

Financial Assets

Non-current assets

(i) Investments 137,615.76  -  - 6,200.00 123,815.39  -  - 6,200.00

(ii) Other non-current financial assets  -  -  125.83  -  -  -  26.55  -

Current assets

(i) Investments  1,260.39  -  -  -  2,130.81  -  -  -

(ii) Trade receivables  -  -  6,714.80  -  -  -  6,446.60  -

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents  -  -  671.66  -  -  -  222.90  -

(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above  -  -  5,274.82  -  -  -  18,795.74  -

(v) Loans  -  -  17.57  -  -  -  0.02  -

(vi) Other current financial assets  -  -  270.21  -  -  -  435.31  -

Total financial assets 138,876.15  -  13,074.89 6,200.00 125,946.20  -  25,927.12 6,200.00

Financial liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(i) Borrowings  -  -  26,954.31  -  -  -  25,968.35  -

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities  -  -  28.05  -  -  -  32.40  -

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings  -  -  19,003.57  -  -  -  34,243.11  -

(ii) Trade payables  -  -  5,465.75  -  -  -  3,431.23  -

(iii) Other current financial liabilities  -  -  3,759.57  -  -  -  1,936.42  -

Total financial liabilities  -  -  55,211.25  -  -  -  65,611.51  -

*Investment in associate carried at cost
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B.	Fa ir value hierarchy

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities measured as fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below.

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Non-current assets

Investments  -    5,245.47  132,370.29  137,615.76  -    16,869.38  106,946.01  123,815.39 

Current assets

Investments  545.03  -    715.36  1,260.39  575.96  -    1,554.85  2,130.81 

Total financial assets  545.03  5,245.47  133,085.65  138,876.15  575.96  16,869.38  108,500.86 125,946.20 

Financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities measured as fair value, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below.

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
 As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets

Non-current assets

(i) Other non-current financial assets#  125.83  121.62  26.55  20.61 

Current assets

(i) Trade receivables*  6,714.80  6,714.80  6,446.60  6,446.60 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents*  671.66  671.66  222.90  222.90 

(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above*  5,274.82  5,274.82  18,795.74  18,795.74 

(iv) Short term loans*  17.57  17.57  0.02  0.02 

(v) Other current financial assets*  270.21  270.21  435.31  435.31 

Total financial assets  13,074.89  13,070.68  25,927.12  25,921.18 

Financial liabilities

Non-Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings#  26,954.31  25,675.17  25,968.35  24,041.02 

(ii) Other non-current financial liabilities#  28.05  25.29  32.40  27.57 

Current liabilities

(i) Borrowings*  19,003.57  19,003.57  34,243.11  34,243.11 

(ii) Trade payables*  5,465.75  5,465.75  3,431.23  3,431.23 

(iii) Other current financial liabilities*  3,759.57  3,759.57  1,936.42  1,936.42 

Total financial liabilities  55,211.25  53,929.35  65,611.51  63,679.35 

# The fair value of these financial assets and financial liabilities are calculated based on the cash flows discounted using average borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair 
values in the fair value hierarchy.
* The carrying amounts of these financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be same as their fair values; due to their short term in nature.
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C.	 Measurement of fair values

The fair value of financial instruments have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that the Company has the ability to 
access for the identical assets or liabilities. A financial instrument is classified as a Level 1 measurement if it is listed on an exchange. This includes listed 
equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the 
stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued at the closing NAV.

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in active markets is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of 
observable market data either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, for substantially the full term 
of the financial instrument but do not qualify as Level 1 inputs. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is 
included in level 2.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs is not based in observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. That is, Level 3 inputs 
incorporate market participants’ assumptions about risk and the risk premium required by market participants in order to bear that risk. The Company 
develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

The Companys policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out of fair value heirarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

Investment in debt securities

Securities classified as, either fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value based on quoted 
market prices. If quoted market prices were not available, fair values were estimated using market yield on balance period to maturity on similar instruments 
and similar credit risk.

Investment in equity shares

Investment in equity shares classified as, either fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value 
based on quoted market prices. If quoted market prices are not available or if the securities were unlisted, the fair values were estimated using valuation 
techniques such as market comparison method etc.

Investment in venture funds/alternate funds

Investment in venture/alternate investment funds classified as fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value based on valuation done by an 
independent third party valuation firm as at the reporting date.

Investment in preference shares

Investment in preference shares classified as fair value through profit or loss, are carried at fair value estimated using valuation techniques such as market 
comparison method etc.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

Loans

The fair values of loans that do not reprice or mature frequently are estimated using discounted cash flow models. The discount rates are determined by 
management based on market rates for similar rated loans and consequently for the purposes of level disclosures categorized under Level 3. The Level 3 
loans would decrease / (increase) in value based upon an increase / (decrease) in discount rate.

Level 3 fair values- Fair value measurements using significant unobsevable inputs

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances to the ending balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value 
hierarchy.

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2023

Total gains/ (losses)
recorded in profit or loss Purchases Sales/ 

Settlements
Transfer In from  

Level 2 #
Transfer Out to 

Level 2 #
As at 31st 

March, 2024

Investments  108,500.86  6,237.23  37,894.48  33,300.72  13,753.79  -  133,085.65
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(₹ in lakh)

Particulars As at 1st April, 
2022

Total gains/(losses) 
recorded in profit or loss Purchases Sales/ 

Settlements
Transfer In from 

Level 2 #
Transfer Out to 

Level 2 #
As at 31st 

March, 2023

Investments  84,797.91  1,058.70  35,142.18  13,884.82  1,386.89  -    108,500.86 

# During the year ended 31st March, 2024, the company transferred Nil investment (P.Y. no investment) from Level 3 to Level 2, as the progess against set milestone were assessed to 
arrive at the fair valuation of these investments.
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 in 2024 and no transfers in either direction in 2023.

The following table summarises the impact of increase/decrease of the Net Asset Value (NAV) on the Company’s equity and profits for its interest held in 
venture capital funds and alternate investment funds. The analysis is based on the assumption that NAV had changed by 1% with all other variables held 
constant.

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Fair value

Venture capital funds / Alternative investment funds  106,965.25  94,432.65 

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

Impact on profit before tax Impact on other component of equity

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Venture capital funds / Alternative investment funds

NAV increase by 1%  1,069.65  944.33  1,069.65  944.33

NAV decrease by 1%  (1,069.65)  (944.33)  (1,069.65)  (944.33)

The Fair Value NAV of the Venture Capital Funds/Alternative Investment Funds is representative of the fair valuation of the underlying investee companies 
of these ventures, hence the sensitivity has been computed on the fair value NAVs.

The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements for other 
investments.

Name of 
the fund/
investment

Fair value as on (₹ in Lakh) 
Valuation technique(s) 
and key input(s) Unobservable inputs

Input values considered

As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

Investment in 
other unqouted 
securities 

 19,357.60  12,301.95 DCF under Income 
Approach, Net 
recovery/ NAV 
Method/ Scenario/
analysis/ milestone 
analysis

Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
(WACC) whose underlying inputs 
are:

(a) �Company Specific Risk 
Premium (CSRP)

- 3.00% to 5.00%

(b) Discount on Multiple - 20% to 30%

(c) Illiquidity Discount 10% 5.00% to 15.00%

(d) Perpetual sales growth - 3.00% to 5.00%

(e) Discount Rate (DR) 18% to 20% 13.80% to 17.50%

(f) �Scenario Analysis & Milestone 
Analysis-upside result

0.25 -40% to 40%

(g) �Market Approach & Milestone 
Analysis-revenue multiple

4.75x - 12.1x -5.7% to 5.7%
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Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Sensitivity analysis

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
(WACC) whose underlying inputs are:

A higher WACC leads to a 
lower fair value

(a) �Company Specific Risk Premium 
(CSRP)

Higher CSRP leads to lower 
value in the Income Approach

Lower CSRP leads to higher 
value in the Income Approach

 - 100 bps increase in CSRP leads to a 0.09% 
decrease in the concluded fair value .

100 bps decrease in CSRP leads to a 
0.10% increase in the concluded fair value

(b) Discount on Multiples Higher Discount on multiple 
leads to lower value

Lower Discount on multiple 
leads to higher value 

 - 500 bps increase in discount on multiples 
leads to decrease of 0.13% in the 
concluded fair value

500 bps decrease in discount on multiples 
leads to 0.13% increase in the concluded 
fair value

(c) Liquidity Discount (Discount) Higher discount leads to a 
lower value

Lower discount leads to a 
higher value

500 bps increase in Discount 
leads an decrease of 0.02% in the 
concluded fair value

500 bps decrease in Discount 
leads to increase of 0.02% in the 
concluded fair value

500 bps increase in Discount leads an 
decrease of 0.12% in the concluded fair 
value

500 bps decrease in Discount leads to 
0.12% increase in the concluded fair value

(d) Perpetual sales growth (PSG) Higher Perpetual sales 
growth leads to higher value

Lower Perpetual sales 
growth leads to a lower value

 - 100 bps increase in PSG leads an increase 
of 0.17% in the concluded fair value

100 bps decrease in PSG leads to 0.14% 
decrease in the concluded fair value

(e) Discount Rate A higher Discount Rate leads 
to a lower fair value

A lower Discount Rate leads 
to a higher fair value

100 bps increase in Discount Rate 
leads to an 0.37% decrease in the 
concluded fair value of the asset

100 bps decrease in Discount Rate 
leads to 0.26% increase in the 
concluded fair value of the asset

100 bps increase in Discount Rate leads 
to an 0.01% decrease in the concluded 
fair value of the asset

100 bps decrease in Discount Rate leads 
to 0.01% increase in the concluded fair 
value of the asset

(f) �Upside Results / Scenario 
Analysis & Milestone Analysis

Higher Upside results growth 
leads to higher value

Lower Upside results growth 
leads to a lower value

100 bps increase in upside results 
leads to an 5.26% increase in the 
concluded fair value of the asset

100 bps decrease in upside results 
leads to 4.85% decrease in the 
concluded fair value of the asset

100 bps increase in upside results leads 
an increase of 7.08% in the concluded fair 
value

100 bps decrease in upside results leads 
to 7.28% decrease in the concluded fair 
value

(g) �Revenue Multiple / Market 
Approach & Milestone Analysis

Higher the Upside results 
leads to higher value

Lower the Upside results 
leads to a lower value

0.25x increase in multiple leads to 
an 1.14% increase in the concluded 
fair value of the asset

0.25x decrease in multiple leads to 
1.14% increase in the concluded 
fair value of the asset

0.25x increase in Multiple leads an 
increase of 1.17% in the concluded fair 
value

0.25x decrease in Multiple leads to 1.17% 
decrease in the concluded fair value

D.	FIN ANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

• Credit risk;

• Liquidity risk; and

• Market risk

i.	 Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The 
board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.
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The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls 
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and 
the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the 
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal 
audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit 
committee.

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of actual or probably financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, investments, loans and other financial assets.

The gross carrying amounts of following financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure:

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Trade receivables  6,739.92  6,477.93 

Loans  18.04  0.02 

Bank Balance  6,048.93  19,022.35 

Other financial assets  299.42  464.98 

Total  13,106.31  25,965.28 

a.	 Credit quality analysis	

The following table sets out the information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

(` in lakh) 

Particulars

Lifetime ECL

As at  
31st March, 2024

As at  
31st March, 2023

Trade Receivables

0-30 days  6,739.92  6,477.93 

Past due 31–90 days  -    -   

Past due 90 days  -    -   

Total  6,739.92  6,477.93 

Less: Impairment Allowance  (25.12)  (31.33)

Carrying amount  6,714.80  6,446.60 

The unbilled revenue receivable of ₹ 6,635.68 as at 31st March, 2024 and the comparative amount of ₹ 6,336.85 lakh as at March 31, 2023 has been 
classified under Trade receivables as per the disclosure requirements of Schedule III, Division II.
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Based on impairment model

(₹ in lakh)

Scheme reference
As at 31st March, 2024

12-month ECL Lifetime ECL not 
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

Purchased credit 
impaired Total

Loans
0-30 days  18.04  -    -    -    18.04 
Past due 31–90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  18.04  -    -    -    18.04 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (0.47)  -    -    -    (0.47)
Carrying amount  17.57  -    -    -    17.57 
Other Financial assets
0-30 days  169.26  -    -    -    169.26 
Past due 31–90 days  -    78.90  -    -    78.90 
Past due 90 days  -    -    51.27  -    51.27 
Total  169.26  78.90  51.27  -    299.42 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (1.20)  (0.59)  (1.55)  -    (3.34)
Carrying amount  168.06  78.31  49.72  -    296.09 
Bank Balance
0-30 days  6,048.93  -    -    -    6,048.93 
Past due 31–90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  6,048.93  -    -    -    6,048.93 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (2.49)  -    -    -    (2.49)
Carrying amount  6,046.44  -    -    -    6,046.44 

(₹ in lakh)

Scheme reference
As at 31st March, 2023

12-month ECL
Lifetime ECL not 
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL credit-
impaired

Purchased credit 
impaired

Total

Loans
0-30 days  0.02  -    -    -    0.02 
Past due 31–90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  0.02  -    -    -    0.02 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (0.00)  -    -    -    (0.00)
Carrying amount  0.02  -    -    -    0.02 
Other Financial assets
0-30 days  425.01  -    -    -    425.01 
Past due 31–90 days  -    0.79  -    -    0.79 
Past due 90 days  -    39.18  -    -    39.18 
Total  425.01  39.97  -    -    464.98 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (1.93)  (1.19)  -    -    (3.12)
Carrying amount  423.08  38.78  -    -    461.86 
Bank Balance
0-30 days  19,022.35  -    -    -    19,022.35 
Past due 31–90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Past due 90 days  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  19,022.35  -    -    -    19,022.35 
Less: Impairment Allowance  (3.71)  -    -    -    (3.71)
Carrying amount  19,018.64  -    -    -    19,018.64 
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b.	 Concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and 
arises principally from the Company’s receivables from Clients and debt securities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions 
and on account of accounts receivable from the client advised or managed by the Company. While there is minimal credit risk in terms of Accounts 
receivable, there is a credit risk emanating from Company’s exposure to Fund investments as a Sponsor.

c.	 Amounts arising from ECL

i.	 Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment:

Inputs considered in the ECL model:

The Company has used simplified approach to provide expected credit loss on trade receivables and contract assets as prescribed by Ind AS 109 which 
permits use of lifetime expected credit loss. The Company has historic credit loss data to compute ECL. The Company uses days past due information and 
forecasts the information to assess deterioration in credit quality of a financial asset.

To measure the expected credit loss, trade receivables and contract assets are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. 
The Contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and have substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts. 
The Company has therefore concluded that the expected credit loss rates of trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the 
contract assets.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of the investment management and advisory services provided over the historic period before 
the reporting date and the corresponding historic credit losses experienced within this period.

With respect to trade receivables / unbilled revenue, the Company has to review the receivables on a periodic basis and to take necessary mitigations, 
wherever required.

Credit risk from investment in debt instruments, balances with bank and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Company’s policy. 
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set to 
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

Forward looking information:

The Company incorporates forward looking information into measurement of ECL. Based on the consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast 
information, the Company forms a ‘base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables such as Gross domestic product, change in gross 
fixed investments etc.. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each 
outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.

ii.	 Impairment loss allowance

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances and write offs:

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars Past due 0–30 days Past due 31–90 days Past due more than 90 days

Trade receivables

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  1.76  -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  -    -    -   

New financial assets originated during the year  31.33  -    -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  (1.76)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  31.33  -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  -    -    -   

New financial assets originated during the year  25.12  -    -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  (31.33)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  25.12  -    -   
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(₹ in lakh)

Particulars Past due 0–30 days Past due 31–90 days Past due more than 90 days

Loans

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  0.02  -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  -    -    -   

New financial assets originated during the year  -    -    -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  (0.02)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  -    -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  -    -    -   

New financial assets originated during the year  0.47  -    -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  -    -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  0.47  -    -   

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars Past due 0–30 days Past due 31–90 days Past due more than 90 days

Other Financial Assets

Balance as at 1st April, 2022  1.49  0.35  0.02 

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  -    -    -   

New financial assets originated during the year  3.12  -    -   

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  (1.49)  (0.35)  (0.02)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  3.12  -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance

New financial assets originated during the year  1.20  0.59  1.55 

Financial assets that have been derecognised during the period  (3.12)  -    -   

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  1.20  0.59  1.55 

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances for Bank Balance and Contract Assets:

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars Bank Balance

Balance as at 31st March, 2022  2.90 

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  0.81 

Balance as at 31st March, 2023  3.71 

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  (1.22)

Balance as at 31st March, 2024  2.49 

iii. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity 
to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company’s reputation. The Company has sufficient Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents which can be utilised to settle the trade payables 
and other financial liabilities.
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Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include 
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

(₹ in lakh)

Sr. 
No. Particulars Carrying 

amount Total Upto 1 
month 1-3 months 3 months- 1 

year 1-5 years More than 5 
years

As at 31st March, 2024

Non-derivative financial liabilities

1 Borrowings  45,957.88  51,264.70  -    6,722.50  14,448.97  30,093.23  -   

2 Trade and other Payables  5,465.75  5,465.75  5,465.75  -    -    -    -   

3 Other Financial Liabilities  3,787.62  3,787.62  909.57  2,850.00  -    28.05  -   

Carrying Amount  55,211.25  60,518.07  6,375.32  9,572.50  14,448.97  30,121.28  -   

(₹ in lakh)

Sr. 
No. Particulars Carrying 

amount Total Upto 1 
month 1-3 months 3 months- 1 

year 1-5 years More than 5 
years

As at 31st March, 2023

Non-derivative financial liabilities

1 Borrowings  60,211.46  67,618.02  -    10,224.99  27,572.89  29,820.15  -   

2 Trade and other Payables  3,431.23  3,431.23  1,479.57  1,951.67  -    -    -   

3 Other Financial Liabilities  1,968.82  1,968.80  6.60  1,872.18  9.38  80.65  -   

Carrying Amount  65,611.51  73,018.05  1,486.17  14,048.84  27,582.27  29,900.80  -   

iv.	 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will affect the Company’s income 
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency 
receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and 
the market value of investments. Thus, exposure to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operating 
activities in foreign currency. The objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in foreign currency.

a)	 Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its trade receivables in foreign currency. The foreign currency exposure in functional currency of 
the Company is not material and hence no sensitivity is considered.

b)	 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those 
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to financial instrument of its issuer, or factors affecting 
similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company is also exposed more generally to market price risk related to assets held at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities increase / decrease as a result of changes in the corresponding value of equity indices or the value 
of individual equity stocks.
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Exposure to Unquoted investments price risk

Investment in unquoted investments as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 are as below:
(` in lakh) 

Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Financial assets 

Unquoted investments (excluding investment in associates, carried at cost)  138,331.14  125,370.29 

Total  138,331.14  125,370.29 

Sensitivity analysis

Whilst these unquoted investments are not traded on any market, they are exposed to price risk in respect of their underlying investments. 5% is the 
sensitivity rate used which represents management’s assessment of the possible net change in underlying prices. The effect of such change in underlying 
prices, with all other variables held constant, is as follows:

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
Impact on Profit and loss

Strengthening Weakening

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Price  - 5% Movement  6,916.56  (6,916.56)

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

Price  - 5% Movement 6,268.51 (6,268.51)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates would adversely affect the Company’s financial conditions. The same typically involves 
looking at a gap or mismatch over different time intervals as at a given date.

The Company has only fixed rate borrowings during the year.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company has accounted for fixed-rate financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. However it does not account for fixed-rate financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss. A change in interest rates at the reporting date would not materially affect profit or loss and hence no sensitivity is 
considered.

Note 45: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and other equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s 
capital management is to maximise shareholders’ value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in 
economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants.
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Note 46: DISCLOSURE AMOUNTS DUE TO MSME UNDERTAKING

(` in lakh) 

Particulars
As at  

31st March, 2024
As at  

31st March, 2023

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier   839.40  39.87 

Interest due thereon   -    -   

Amount of interest paid  in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

 -    -   

Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMEDA 

 2.82  -   

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -    -   

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of 
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006.

 -    -   

Note 47: Audit trail

As per the requirements of rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 the Company uses only such accounting software for maintaining its books 
of account that have a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along 
with the date when such changes were made within such accounting software. This feature of recording audit trail has operated throughout the year and 
was not tampered with during the year. The audit trail feature at application level was not enabled in respect of one accounting software, and at database 
level in respect of three accounting software. In respect of two accounting software hosted by third-party service providers for maintaining its books of 
account, the Service Orgnaization Control Report was not available to check whether the audit trail was enabled or not as per the requirements of rule 3(1) 
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 for direct data changes at the database level. The Company has established and maintained an adequate internal 
control framework and based on its assessment, believes that this was effective as of 31st March, 2024.

Note 48: SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, including 
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

All operating segments’ results are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors, which have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) 
of the Company inter-Company revenues and expenses, for which discrete financial information is available. The Board of Directors, which have been 
identified as the CODM, regularly review the performance reports and make decisions about allocation of resources.

The Company has identifiied the following reportable segments, performance reports of which is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

Reportable segments  Principal Activity 

Investment Management & Advisory Providing investment management and advisory services to various private equity, venture capital, alternative 
investment funds and companies. It also offers investment advisory services to High Networth Individual (HNI) 
Clients. Further the company is required to make co-investments with the funds in certain companies in its role as 
an investment manager. Therefore in the opinion of the management, the risks and rewards associated with the 
investments are similar to the investment management / advisory activities.

Investments Investments other than Investments under Investment Management and Advisory

Investment Distribution (Cherry) Investment distribution provided through Cherry application
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A.	I nformation about reportable segments

For the year ended 31st March, 2024
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

 Reportable Segments 
 Investment 

Management 
& Advisory 

Investments  Investment 
Distribution 

 Total 
Segments  Unallocated  Total 

 (A)  (B)  (C)  D = A + B + C  (E)  (D) + (E) 

Revenue
External Revenue  45,948.47  1,853.31  164.52  47,966.30  -    47,966.30 
Total Revenue  45,948.47  1,853.31  164.52  47,966.30  -    47,966.30 
Expenses  27,115.11  110.22  5,112.15  32,337.48  -    32,337.48 
Depreciation and amortization  257.94  -    831.51  1,089.44  -    1,089.44 
Segment profit / (loss) before tax  18,575.41  1,743.09  (5,779.13)  14,539.37  -    14,539.37 
Tax Expense  -    -    -    -    (2,954.48)  (2,954.48)
Profit for the year  18,575.41  1,743.09  (5,779.13)  14,539.37  (2,954.48)  11,584.89 
Segment assets  136,541.72  22,821.95  2,108.04  161,471.71  3,268.41  164,740.12 
Segment liabilities  54,922.82  -    1,522.27  56,445.09  3,749.96  60,195.05 
Other disclosures
Investment in an associate  -    6,200.00  -    6,200.00  -    6,200.00 
Interest Income  1,204.20  -    122.08  1,326.28  -    1,326.28 
Finance Costs  4,186.47  -    -    4,186.47  -    4,186.47 
Depreciation and amortisations  257.94  -    831.51  1,089.45  -    1,089.45 
Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- current 
investment

 (42.90)  38.66  6.04  1.80  -    1.80 

Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- non current 
investment

 17,698.74  1,814.65  -    19,513.39  -    19,513.39 

Capital expenditure  601.52  -    529.51  1,131.03  -    1,131.03 

For the year ended 31st March, 2023
(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

 Reportable Segments 
 Investment 

Management 
& Advisory 

Investments  Investment 
Distribution 

 Total 
Segments  Unallocated  Total 

 (A)  (B)  (C)  D = A + B + C  (E)  (D) + (E) 

Revenue
External Revenue  29,538.52  2,134.25  61.57  31,734.34  18.79  31,753.13 
Total Revenue  29,538.52  2,134.25  61.57  31,734.34  18.79  31,753.13 
Expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Segment profit / (loss) before tax  10,013.16  1,943.34  (6,747.57)  5,208.93  18.79  5,227.72 
Tax Expense  -    -    -    -    (975.66)  (975.66)
Profit for the year  10,013.16  1,943.34  (6,747.57)  5,208.93  (956.87)  4,252.06 
Segment assets  138,771.00  20,093.72  2,467.19  161,331.91  1,648.30  162,980.21 
Segment liabilities  64,792.15  -    2,558.60  67,350.75  2,673.78  70,024.53 
Other disclosures
Investment in an associate  -    6,200.00  -    6,200.00  -    6,200.00 
Interest Income  483.46  -    55.15  538.61  18.56  557.17 
Finance Costs  2,343.39  -    -    2,343.39  -    2,343.39 
Depreciation and amortisations  197.95  -    520.77  718.72  -    718.72 
Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- current 
investment

 (283.73)  8.53  1.06  (274.14)  -    (274.14)

Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes- non current 
investment

 7,660.42  2,126.00  -    9,786.42  -    9,786.42 

Capital expenditure  391.57  -    1,791.69  2,183.26  -    2,183.26 
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B.	I nformation about major customers

The details of aggregate of revenue from transactions with more than single external customer or counterparty amounting to 10% or more of the Company’s 
total revenue are as below :-

(` in lakh) 

Reportable segments 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 

Investment Management & Advisory  14,213.45  13,464.91 

Note 49: RATIOS

Particulars Numerator Denominator Mar-24 Mar-23  % of 
variance 

Explanation for change in the 
ratio by more than 25%

Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio 
(times)

Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.51 0.70 -28% Decrease in Current Ratio due 
to decrease in the bank balance 
other than cash and cash 
equivalent by 72%

Solvency Ratio
Debt-Equity Ratio 
(times)

Total Debt Shareholder’s Equity 0.44  0.65 -32% Decrease in Debt Equity ratio 
due to decrease in borrowings 
by ₹ 14,253 Lakh

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 
(times)

Earnings available for debt 
service (Net Profit after 
taxes + Non-cash operating 
expenses like depreciation and 
other amortizations + Interest 
+ other adjustments like profit 
on sale of Fixed assets etc.)

Debt service = Interest & 
Lease Payments + Principal 
Repayments

0.44  1.71 -74% Increase in Debt Equity ratio due 
to increase in operating profit 
ratio by 48%

Profitability ratio
Net Profit Ratio 
(%)

Profit After Tax Total Income 24.15% 13.39% 80% Increase in Net profit ratio is due 
to increase in profit by 172%

Return on Equity 
Ratio (%)

Profit After Tax Average Shareholder’s Equity 11.73% 4.68% 151% Increase in return on equity ratio 
is due to increase in profit by 
172%

Return on Capital 
employed (%)

Earning before interest and tax Capital Employed (Tangible 
Net Worth + Total Debt + 
Deferred Tax Liability)

12.29% 4.92% 150% Increase in Return on capital 
employed ratio is due to 
increase in Earnings before 
interest and tax by 147%

Return on 
Investment (%)

Income from investments Average fair value of 
investments

14.49% 8.39% 73% Increase in Return on investment 
ratio is due to increase in returns 
by 110%

Note 50: REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

a)	 The Company has recognised following amounts relating to revenue in the Statement of profit and loss:

(` in lakh) 

Scheme reference  For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

 For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers 27,021.28 21,510.19 

Total 27,021.28 21,510.19 

Revenue from other sources 20,945.02 10,242.94 

Revenue as per Statement of Profit and Loss 47,966.30 31,753.13 

Impairment loss on receivables (6.21) (14.92)

Impairment loss on contract assets - -
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b)	 Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by primary geographical market, major products/service lines and timing of revenue recognition:

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

(A)
Investment Management and 

Advisory 

(B)
Investments

(C)
Investments Distribution

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2023

Primary Geographical Market
India*  26,600.51  21,112.53  -    -    33.77  2.15 
Outside India  387.00  395.51  -    -    -   -
Total  26,987.51  21,508.04  -    -    33.77  2.15 
Major products/service lines
Investment Management / Advisory  26,987.51  21,508.04  -    -    33.77  2.15 
Total  26,987.51  21,508.04  -    -    33.77  2.15 
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time  140.00  26.00  -    -    33.77  2.15 
Over a period of time  26,847.51  21,482.04  -    -    -    -   
Total  26,987.51  21,508.04  -    -    33.77  2.15 

* The above revenue includes revenue from GIFT City branch 

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars

(D)
Unallocated

(A + B + C+ D)
Total

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2024

For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2023

Primary Geographical Market
India*  -    -    26,634.28  21,114.68 
Outside India  -    -    387.00  395.51 
Total  -    -    27,021.28  21,510.19 
Major products/service lines
Investment Management / Advisory  -    -    27,021.28  21,510.19 
Total  -    -    27,021.28  21,510.19 
Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time  -    -    173.77  28.15 
Over a period of time  -    -    26,847.51  21,482.04 
Total  -    -    27,021.28  21,510.19 

c)	 Contract Balances

i)	� The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:
(` in lakh) 

Scheme reference For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

Receivables (including unbilled revenue, refer note 12)  6,714.80  6,446.60 

Contracts assets  -    -   

Contracts liabilities  4.25  4.78 
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ii)	� Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the period are as follows:

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars
 Contract assets Contract liabilities

As at  
31st March, 2024 

As at  
31st March, 2023 

As at  
31st March, 2024 

As at  
31st March, 2023 

At the beginning of the reporting period  -    -    4.78  22.41 
Add : Revenue recognised/ liabilities during the year  -    -    4.25  4.78 
Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at 
the beginning of the period

 -    -    (4.78)  (22.41)

Impairment of contract asset  -    -    -    -   
Contract asset reclassified to a receivable  -    -    -    -   
At the end of the reporting period  -    -    4.25  4.78 

d)	 Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation

As of 31st March, 2024, the amount of transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligation are as follows. The Company will recognise the 
revenue as and when management services are rendered.

(` in lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

Contracts liability  4.25 4.78

e)	 Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer

i)	� Judgements made in determining the amount of the costs incurred to obtain or fulfil a contract with a 
customer and details of method of amortisation

The Company has recognised an asset in relation to costs incurred for setting up of the fund and bringing the investors to the fund as management expects 
that such costs are incremental cost of obtaining contract with customers and are recoverable. The asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
tenure of the fund which is consistent with the pattern of recognition of the associated revenue.

ii)	 The following table discloses the movement of cost to obtain a contract with customers:

(` in lakh) 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March, 2024

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

Opening Balance  505.90 351.44 

Add : Cost during the year  254.28 308.92 

Less: Amortisation (105.40) (154.46)

Closing Balance  654.78 505.90

As of 31st March, 2024, the Company will amortise the set up cost over the remaining period as follows:

(₹ in lakh)

Particulars Upto 1 year 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 year 

Set-up costs  98.23  268.86  94.78  192.91 

Contract cost incurred for close ended funds are amortised over the life of the fund. The contract cost on open ended fund have been expensed off during 
the year when they incur.
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Note 51: ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES UNDER SCHEDULE III

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

The Company has borrowings from a bank on the basis of security of current assets and investment in units of real estate funds. The monthly statements 
of such security filed by the Company with the bank are in agreement with books of accounts.

The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

As per the information available with the Company, Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 
2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

There has been no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has also not received any fund 
from any parties (Funding Party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

During the year, the Company has raised funds through issuance of the Non-convertible Debentures and Commercial Papers. No funds have been received 
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
onbehalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of 
layers) Rules, 2017.

There are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of accounts which has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the current or previous financial year.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including intangible assets during the current or previous financial year.

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.
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